
From: 

Sent: 
To: 

CC: 
Subject : 

Hey folks -

Humphrey, Clarke EOP/WHO 

1/23/20211:04:39 AM 
twi 

Flaherty, Robert EOP/WHO 
Flagging Hank Aaron misinfo 

CONFIDENTIAL 

who.eop.gov] 

twitter.com) 

Wanted to flag the below tweet and am wondering if we can get moving on the process for having it removed 
ASAP: 

https://twitter.com/RobertKennedyJr/status/13527 48139665645569 

And then if we can keep an eye out for tweets that fall in this same ~genre that would be great. 

Thanks! 
Clarke 
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From: 

Sent: 
To: 

CC: 
Subject : 

CONFIDENTIAL 

twitter.com) 

1/23/20211:08:36 AM 
Humphrey, Clarke EOP/WHO who.eop.gov) 

twitter .com]; Fl a herty, Robert EOP /WHO 
[EXTERNAL] Re: Fl a ggi ng Hank Aaron mis info 

Thanks. We recently escalated this. 

On Fri, Jan 22, 2021 at 8:05 PM Humphrey, Clarke EOP/WHO 
Hey folks -

who.eop.gov) 

Wanted to flag the below tweet and am wondering if we can get moving on the process for having it removed 
ASAP: 

>https://twitter.com/RobertKennedyJ r/status/13527 48139665645569< 

And then if we can keep an eye out for tweets that fall in this same ~genre that would be great. 

Thanks! 
Clarke 

Twitter, Inc. I Public Policy 
@TwitterGov & @Policy 
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From: 
To: 
Sent: 
Subject: 

Hi Rob, 

CONFIDENTIAL 

twitter.com> 
Flaherty, Robert EOP/WHO 
2/7/2021 3:00:29 PM 
Re: [EXTERNAL) Re: Urgent: Finnegan Biden imposter 

Glad that we could help resolve the issue last night. To help streamline the process, and ensure that you have 
expedited help, we would strongly recommend the following: 

1. Consult with the White Bouse IT De1>artment to unblock emails from Twitter's Support Ticketing 
System. The issues you're experiencing are due to the White House's system prohibiting emails. The two prior 
administrations also experienced this issue and it is fixable within your internal systems. This is particularly 
critical to resolve at large because if there is an issue with your account, we would notify you through email. 

2. Designate a list of authorized White House staff for Twitter's Partner Support Portal. We sent over 
instructions about this on January 28th and also discussed this with Christian during our call on Febrnary 4th. 
This is the same system we had in place for the previous two administrations for their support issues, as well as 
the transition and campaign teams. 

Once you assign and we enroll these authorized reporters, whenever they submit a ticket through the Help Center 
it will be prioritized automatically, without having to contact our team, and you won't need to add your personal 
information. To enroll your designated reporters to the Partner Support Portal, we simply need the li st 
of @usernames (up to 10) that are registered with a White House email address. 

3. Streamlined coo1·d ination with ODS. We are committed to making sure your team is properly trained and 
equipped with all of the tools and best practices for both content development and triaging issues. To deliver the 
best service, we would prefer to have a streamlined process strictly with your team as the internal liaison. That is 
the most efficient and effective way to ensure we are prioritizing requests. In a given day last week for example, 
we bad more than four different people w ithin the White House reaching out for issues. The more we can 
empower your team to be the in-house experts, the better service and paitnership we can provide. 

I would welcome a conversation about the aforementioned if you have specific questions. 

Thanks, -
Twitter, Inc. I Public Policy 
@TwitterGov & @PoID 

On Sat, Feb 6, 202 1 at 11 :09 PM Flaherty, Robert EOP/WHO 
Thanks 

Sent from my iPhone 

On Feb 6, 202 1, at 10:32 PM, 
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CONFIDENTIAL 

Update for you - account is now suspended. 

On Sat, Feb 6, 2021 at 9:47 PM Flaherty, Robert EOP/WHO c. who.eo .oov> wrote: 
Great. Cannot stress the degree to which this needs to be resolved immediately. 

Sent from my iPhone 

On Feb 6, 2021, at 9:47 PM, 

Thank you for sending over. We' ll escalate for fwther review from here. 

On Sat, Feb 6, 202 1 at 9:45 PM Flaherty, Robert EOP/WHO 
I have tried using your form three times and it won't work- it is also ridiculous that I need to upload my id to a 
form prove that I am an authorized representative of Finnegan Bi den. 

Please remove the is account immediately: 

>>>https://twitter.com/bidenfinnegan<<<;; 

I have CC'd Anthony Bernal, the First Lady's senior advisor, in case you have any further questions. 

Sent from my iPhone 

Twitter I Public Policy 
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From: 

Sent: 
fb.com] 

2/11/202110:17:22 AM 

CONFIDENTIAL 

To: Flaherty, Robert EOP/WHO who.eop.gov); Rowe, Courtney M. EOP/WHO 
11 ho.eop.gov) ; Humphrey, ClarkeEOP/WHO who.eop.gov) 

CC: \'l 

1) 

fb.com); fb.com); fb.com); -
fb.com] 

Subject : [EXTERNAL) Re: COVID-19 Outreach to communities worldwide 

Hi Rob, 

Quickly following up to see when you would like to have a meeting arranged to speak to our misinformation 
team reps about the latest updates. They also have a more detailed misinformation analysis prepared based on 
the discussions/questions from the previous meetings during the transition time period. 

Best, 

-
Get Outlook for iOS 

From: fb. com> 
Sent: Tuesday, February 9, 2021 5:57:52 PM 

HO ho.eop.gov>; Rowe, Courtney M. EOP/WHO 
.eop. 
fb.c 

0 

om om> 
Subject: Re: COVID-190utreach to communities worldwide 

Good evening Rob, 

We have provided responses to you r init ial questions with input from t he various teams below. We are happy to discuss 
these and additional questions as pe ryour recent note. Do let us know a few windows that work for you. 

Can you share more about your framework here? May, of course, is very differentthan "will." Is there a strike policy, 
ala Youtube? Does the severity of the claims matter? 

We don't disclose the detai lsofourthresholds publicly due to concerns about users gaming the system to avoid 
enforcement, however we do not ify Grau ps, Pages, and Advertisers when we've removed content that violates our 
Community Standards. We start placing rest rictions on accounts, Pages, and Groups for multi pie violations, i ncluding 
rest rictions on theirabi lity toshare contentforincreasi ng periods of time and limitations on the ir ability to reach t heir 
audi e nee. If violat ions conti nue, we wi 11 suspend t hee nti re Page, Grau p, oraccou nt. Addi ti anally, when we review Pages 
and Groups we look at how they describe themsel ves and may restrict or remove t hem if t he title or description violate 
our pol icies. 

And as far as your removal of claims, do you have data on the actual number of claims-related posts you've removed? 
Do you have a sense of how many are being flagged versus how many are being removed? Are there actions 
( downranking, etc) that sit before removal? 

It is a bit too early to be sure-We wil I begin enforcing t his policy immediately, with a particular focus on Pages, Groups 
and accounts that violate these rules, and we'll continue t o expand our enforcement over the coming weeks. There is a 
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CONFIDENTIAL 

range of content that can violate t hese policies, and it will take some t ime to train the reviewers and systems on 
enforcement 

How are you handling things that are dubious, but not provably false? 

In consultation with leading healt h organizations, we continuously expand the l ist of false claims that we remove about 
COVID-19and vaccines during the pandemic. We remove claims public health authorities tell us have been debunked or are 
unsupported by evidence. 

Content which does notqual ifyforremoval may be eligible to be fact-checked byournetworkofover80 fact-checking 
organizations. When one of ourindependentfact-checking partners debunk a post, we reduce its distribution and add 
strong warning labels with more context, so fewerpeoplesee the post. We do not remove t he content, but are focusing 
on improvement efforts that wi ll help us to better address contentthatcontributes to unfounded hesitancy towards the 
COVID-19vaccine. 
For example, we're working to proactive lyp revent posts discouraging vaccines from going viral on our platforms; 
addresscontentthat experts believe dissuades people from getting the vaccine, but does not violate our m isinformation 
policies, through the use of information labels; and prevent recommendations for Groups, Pages, and lnstagram 
accounts that repeatedly push content discouragingvaccines. 

-On Behalf of the Face book team 

FACE BOOK 

U.S. Public Policy 
Facebook 

From: "Flaherty, Robert EOP/WHO" who.eop.gov> 

Oat- 2021 at4:59 PM 
To:~ fb.com>, "Rowe, Courtney M. EOP/WHO" 

"Humphrey, Clarke EOP/WHO" who.eop.gov> 

Cc: fb.com>, 

fb.com> 

Subject: RE: COVID-19 Outreach to communities worldwide 

who.e op.gov>, 

All, especially given the Journal's reporting on your internal work on political violence spurred by Facebookgroups,I am 
also curious about the new rules as part of the "overhaul." I am seeing that you wi II no lo ngerpromote civic and health 
related groups, but I am wondering if the reforms here extend further? Are there other growth vectors you are 
control Ii ng for? 

Happy to put ti me on t he calendarto discuss further. 

From: Flaherty, Robert EOP/WHO 
Se 8 2021 1:37 PM 
To: fb.com>; Rowe, Courtney M. EOP/WHO who.eop.gov>; Humphrey, 
Cla who.eop.gov> 
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CONFIDENTIAL 

Cc: fb.com>; fb.com>; fb.com> 
Subject: RE: COVID-19 Outreach to communit ies worldwide 

- Thanks. 

This Ii ne, of course, stands out: 

that repeatedly share these debunked claims may be removed altogether. 

Can you share more about your framework here? May, of course, is very different than "wi l I." Is there a strike pol icy, ala 
Youtube? Does the severity of the cl aims matter? 

And as fa r as your removal of claims, do you have data on the actua l number of claims - related posts you've removed? 
Do you have a sense of how many are being flagged versus how many are being removed? Are there actions 
(downranking, etc) t hat sit before removal? How are you handling things t hat are dubious, but not provably false? 

Thanks 

From: fb.com> 
Sent: Monday, February 8, 20211:18 PM 
To: Rowe Courtney M. EOP/WHO who.eop.goV>; Flaherty, RobertEOP/WHO 

who.eop.gov>; H OP /WHO who.eop.goV> 
Cc: fb.com>; fb.com>; fb.com> 
Subject: [EXTERNAL] COVID-19 Outreach to communities worl dwide 

Good afternoon Courtney, Rob, and Clarke, 

We wanted to make sure you saw our announcements today about running the largest worldwide campaign to promote 
authoritative COVID-19vacci ne information and expandingourefforts to remove falseclai mson Face book and 
lnstagram about COVID-19, COVID-19vaccinesandvaccines in general during the pandemic. More details are in our 
Newsroom: authoritative COVI D-19vacci ne information and COVID-19 and vaccine misinformation. 

Helping People Find Where and When They Can Get Vaccinated 
• Startingthis week, we' ll featu relinks in the COVID-19 Information Center to local ministry of healt h websites to 
help people understand w hether t hey' re eligible to get vaccinated and how t o do so. 
• And in the comingweeks, as more information becomes available, we'll continue to improve this feature, 
making it easier for people to see where and when they can get vaccinated in just a few taps. 

Sharing Credible Information About COVID-19 Vaccines 
• We're working with healt h organizations and commun ity lead ers to run campaigns on our platform promoting 
accurate information about COVID-19vaccines and encouraging people to get vaccinated. 
• We're giving over $120 mi Il ion in ad credits to help health minist ries, NGOs and UN agencies reach bi I lions of 
people around the world with COVID-19vaccine and prevent ive health information . 
• In the US, we' re partnering with the Johns Hopkins Bloomberg School of Pub I ic Health to reach Nat ive American 
communities, Black communities and Latinx communities, among others, with science and evidence-based content t hat 
addresses the questions and concerns t hese com mu niti es have. 
• We're al soworkingwith AARP to reach Americans over SO with educational contentaboutCOVID-19vaccines, 
including Spanish-language content designed to reach Latinx and Hispaniccommunities. 

Combating Vaccine Misinformation 
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CONFIDENTIAL 

• We are expanding our efforts to remove false claims on Face book and lnstagram aboutCOVID-19, COVID-19 
vaccines and vaccines in general during the pandemic. Since December, we've removed false claims about COVID-19 
vaccines that have been debunked by public health experts. 
• Today, fo llowing consultations with leading health organizations, incl udingthe World Health Organization 

(WHO), we are expanding the list of false claims we will removeto include additional debunked claims about the 
coronavirus and vaccines. We al ready prohibit these claims i n ads. 
• Groups, Pages and accounts on Face book and lnstagram that repeatedly share these debunked claims may be 
removed altogether. We are also requiring some admins for groups with adminsormembers who have violated our 
COVID-19 policies to temporarily approve all posts within their group. 

• When people search for vaccine or COVI D-19 re lated content on Face book, we promote relevant, authoritative 
results and provide third-party resources to connect people to experti nformation about vaccines. On lnstagram, in 
addition to surfacing authoritative results in Search, in the coming weeks we're making it hardertofi nd accounts in 
search that discourage people from getting vaccinated. 
• As we noted last month in response to guidance from the Oversight Board, we are committedtoprovidingmore 
transparency around these policies. You can read the detailed updates in Face book's Community Standards and in our 

Help Center. 

Providing Data to Inform Effective Vaccine Delivery 
• Last year, we began collaborating with Carnegie Mel Ion University Del phi Research Group and the University of 
Maryland on COVID-19 surveys about symptoms people are experiencing, mask wearing behaviors and access to care. 
With over 50 million responses to date, the survey program is one of the largest ever conducted and has helped healt h 
researchers bette r monitor and forecast the spread of COVI D-19. 

• To help guide the effective de livery of COVID-19vaccines, the survey data wil l provide a better understanding of 
trends in vaccine i ntentacross sociodemographics, race, geography and more. The scale of the surveywill also allow for 
faster updates on changes in trends, such as whethervaccine intent is going up or down in Californ ia in a given week and 
better insights on howvacci ne intentvaries at a local leve l. We'll share these new insights including vaccine attitudes at 
a county level in the US as well as globally. 

These new policies and programs will help us continue to take aggressive action against misinformation aboutCOVID-19 

and vaccines and help people find where and when they can get vaccinated . You can read more about how we're 
supportingCOVID-19reliefeffortsand keeping people informed at our COVID-19action page . 

-On Behalfofthe Facebookteam 

FACE BOOK 

U.S. Public Policy 

Facebook 
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From: 

Sent: 
To: 

Flaherty, Rob EOP/WHO 

3/15/20213:20:54 AM 

CONFIDENTIAL 

who.eop.gov) 

fb.com) 
CC: Humphrey, Clarke EOP/WHO who.eop.gov); Peck, Joshua (HHS/ ASPA) 

Rowe, Courtney M . EOP/WHO who.eop .gov); fb.com); 

_,fb.com]; fb.com] 
Subject : Re: [EXTERNAL) Survey Findings:Jan 10- Feb 27 

- thanks. Good insights here. 

I'm more interested in the data that was outlined in the Washington Post 
(https//www.washingtonpost.com/technology/202l /03/l4/facebook-vaccine-hesistancy-qanon) 

And what interventions you are testing/their effectiveness. 

-Rob 

Sent from my iPhone 

On Mar 12, 2021, at 4:59 PM, 

Hi All, 

fb.com> wrote: 

Following up on our commitment to share our survey data on vaccine uptake. We're happy to share these 
findings regularly moving forward to help inform your teams and strategies. Attached are our findin~ from 
January l O -- February 27, 2021. On Monday the report will be available online, and I'll be sure to send a link 
when it's published. 

Note that highlights of the findings are up top, a robust executive summary follows, and then a deep dive into 
the methodology, greater detail on state trends, occupations, barriers to acceptance. etc. Hopefully, this format 
works for the various teams and audiences within the White House I HHS that may find this data valuable. 
We're also open to feedback on the formatting. 

Please let us know if you have specific questions about the findings or the survey itself: we're happy to track 
down answers or book time. 

Best, 

-
fb.com 

<CMU_Topline_ Vaccine_Report_20210312.pdf> 
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From: 

Sent: 
To: 
CC: 
Subject : 

fb.com] 

3/16/202111:17:59 PM 

CONFIDENTIAL 

Slavitt, Andrew M . EOP/WHO who.eop.gov] 
Flaherty, Rob EOP/WHO who.eop.gov] 
Re: [EXTERNAL] Re: You are hiding the ball 

Thanks Andy, and apologies for the de lay in getting back. We are absolutely invested in getting you the specific 
informat ion needed to successfully manage the vaccine roll out. We want to share information with you that we trust is 
statistically significant and derived from sound analysis, so that it can actually be helpful. The information cited in the 
WaPo article over the weekend was leaked and was not vetted interna lly to understand how accurate it is or the 
ramifications that could result from it. But I understand your point regarding how we communicate, and that we need to 
share information with you in a way that prioritizes what we are seeing in as close to real t ime as possible. I'd like to set 
up a conversation with our research leads towal k your team through ongoing research we are currently conducting and 
our approach; and then we can prioritize sharing results as quickly as possible. 

Moreover, the data we sent on Friday and wi II continue to send throughout the year represents the i nformationwe are 
using internal lytoshape our own thinking on this content-we believe th is data addresses many of the questions that 
have been posed (because it has been so helpful to guide our own internal efforts). We'd appreciate the opportunity to 
go through it in detail with whomever is interested on your team. 

I know you're extremely busy. If it's ever helpful to connect by phone instead ofoveremail I a mat 

-
From: Slavitt, Andrew M. EOP/WHO who.eop.gov> 
Date: Monday, March 15, 2021 at 7:11 PM 

To: fb.com> 

Cc: Flaherty, Rob EOP/WHO who.eop.gov> 

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Re: You are hiding the ball 

-
I appreciate being copied on the note. It wou ld nice to establish trust. I do feel like re lative to others, interactions with 
Face book are not straightforward and the problems are worse- like you are trying to meet a minimum hurdle instead 
of trying to solve the problem and we have to ask you precise questions and even then we get highly scrubbed party line 
answers. We have urgency and don't sense it from you all.100% of the questions I asked have never been answered and 
weeks have gone by. 

Internally we have been considering our options on what to do about it. 

Regards, 

Andy 

Sent from my iPhone 

On Mar 15, 2021, at 6:42 PM, fb.com>wrote : 

MOLA_DEFSPROD _00017623 

Case 3:22-cv-01213-TAD-KDM   Document 174-1   Filed 01/11/23   Page 10 of 70 PageID #: 
9274



CONFIDENTIAL 

Thanks, Rob. Called and left you a message earlier. I understand why you'd read the WaPo piece and come away feeling 
like we are not leveling with you. The piece inflated unconfirmed and leaked work that's being done by a smal I 
team. It's exploratory work and is not close to being a finalized work product - in fact the team that briefed you 
(including me) wasn't aware of the work at the ti me we briefed you. This was not a "massive study" as depicted by the 
Post- this was a small team experimentingwithapplyinga relatively new system toCOVID19content. At any given 
ti me, there are many research projects similarto this being conducted by data scientists across the platform--as we've 
discussed, we're working hard to understand and address this type of content. Our defi nitlon of vaccine hesitancy is 
evolving- it is not a mature concept. This is early work and we have not gone through the kind of quality assurance we'd 
usually do before sharing the learnings externally. The data that leaked and was reported on should not be interpreted 
to be anything more than one of many efforts underway to better inform how we tackle this problem. As we develop 
them further, we wi 11 definitely keep you updated. 

We obviously have work to do to gain your trust. You mention that you are not trying to play "gotcha" with us-I 
appreciate the approach you are taking to continued discussions. We are also working to get you useful information 
that's on the level. That's my job and I take i t seriously-I'll conti nue todo itto the best of my abil ity, and I'll expect you 
to hold me accountable. 

If interested, I can schedule time to give you more context on how this work is done and why we wouldn't include it in a 
briefing. 

From: Flaherty, Rob EOP/WHO 

Dat e: Monday, March 15, 2021 at 1:10 PM 

To: fb.com> 
Cc: Slavitt, Andrew M. EOP/WHO 

Subject: RE: You are hiding the ball 

who.eop.gov> 

who.eop.gov> 

I don'tthinkthis isa misunderstanding,_ I've been asking you guys pretty directly, over a series of conversations, 
for a clearaccounting of the biggest issues you are seeing on your platform when it comes tovacci ne hesitancy, and the 
degree to which borderli necontent-as you define it- is playing a role. I've also been asking for what actions you have 
been taking to mitigate it as part of your "lockdown" - which in our first conversation, was said to be in response to 
concerns over borderline content, in our 1:1 convoyou said was not out of any kind of concern over borderline content, 
and in our third conversation never even came up. 

You said you would commit to us that you'd level with us. I am seeinginthe press that you have data on the impact of 
borderline content, and its overlap withvariouscommunities. I have asked for this point blank, and got, instead, an 
overview of how the algorithm works, with a pivot to a conversation aboutprofileframes, and a45-minute meeting that 
seemed to provide you with more insights than it provided us. 

I am not trying to play "gotcha" with you. We are gravely concerned that your service is one of the top driversofvaccine 
hesitancy- period. I wi II also be the first to acknowledge that borderline content offers no easy solutions. But we want 
to know that you're trying, we want to know how we can help, and we want to know that you're not playing a shell 
game with us when we ask you what is going on. 

This would all be a lot easier if you would just be straight with us. 

From: fb.com> 
Sent: Monday, March 15, 2021 10:22 AM 
To: Flaherty, Rob EOP/WHO 
Cc: Slavitt, Andrew M. EOP/WHO 
Subject : [EXTERNAL] Re: You are hidi ngthe ball 

who.eop.gov> 
who.eop.gov> 
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CONFIDENTIAL 

Thanks Rob-I t hink there is a misunderstanding on whatthisstory is coveri ngwith respect to research that's 
happening-I wil I cal I t o clear up. Certainly not hiding the ball. 

Also flagging our announcement t hat went live this morning-this is the announcement I menti oned on Friday's call. 

»>https://about.fb.com/news/2021/03/mark-zuckerberg-announces-facebooks-plans-to-help-get-people-vaccinated­
agai nst-covid-19/<«;; 

From: Flaherty, Rob EOP/WHO 

Date: Sunday, March 14, 2021 at 11:13 PM 
To: fb.com> 

Cc: Slavi tt, Andrew M. EOP/WHO 
Subject: You are hiding the ball 

who.eop.gov> 

who.eop.gov> 

»>https://www. was hi ngtonpost.com/tech nol ogy/2021/03/ 14/face book-vaccine-he si sta ncy-ganon«<;; 

Sent from my i Phone 
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From: 

Sent: 
To: 
CC: 
Subject : 

fb.com] 

3/24/20211 :42:30 PM 
Flaherty, Rob EOP/WHO 
Slavitt, Andrew M . EOP /WHO 

CONFIDENTIAL 

Re: [EXTERNAL] Re: Fol lowup - Fridaycallw 

Look forward to talkingtodayat4:00. ~ ill plan on giving an overview of her role and the work across the teams 
at the top and of course will respond to questions, as that's the objective of having her in touch with you regularly over 
the coming weeks. One additional participant on our end will be--justto make sure we're tracking all 
follow ups. 

From: Flaherty, Rob EOP/WHO who.eop.gov> 

Date: Tuesday, March 23, 2021 at 11:16 AM 

To: fb.com> 
Cc: Slavitt, Andrew M. EOP/WHO who.eop.gov> 

Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] Re: Follow up - Friday call wllll 
Great. I can do 4! 

From: fb.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, March 23, 2021 11:03 AM 
To: Flaherty, Rob EOP/WHO 
Cc: Slavitt, Andrew M. EOP/WHO who.eop.gov> 
Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL) Re: Follow up - Friday call w -

Rob--we're good to schedule around your avail Wednesday afternoon if that works. 

From: Flaherty, Rob EOP/WHO who.eop.gov> 
Date: Monday, March 22, 2021 at 11:21 PM 

To: fb.com> 
Cc: Slavitt, Andrew M. EOP/WHO who.eop.gov> 

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Re: Follow up - Friday call wllll 
1111-1 believe you mentioned in a previous conversation that large meetings like that are not the most productive 
way to exchange information on t his topic. I certainly have not found them to be especiallyilluminating. lfwe'regoingto 
do another large format meeting, can you outline what you'll be bringing to the table? Otherwise, it seems li ke a smaller 
group may be more productive. 

Sent from my i Phone 

On Mar 22, 2021, at 10:58 PM, fb.com>wrote: 

Thanks Rob-appreciate the context below. For the meetingwith--possible that we could aim for 
Wednesday? I' ll rallyourfolks if you have a window in theafternoonthatwill work. 
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CONFIDENTIAL 

From: Flaherty, Rob EOP/WHO who.eop.gov> 
Date: Monday, March 22, 2021 at4:51 PM 
To: fb.com>, Slavitt, Andrew M. EOP/WHO who.eop.gov> 
Subject: RE: Follow up - Friday cal l wllll 
Awesome ... Similarlyto howwe're lookingoutforyourgameplan on tackl i ng vaccine hesitancy spread on your 
platform, we'll look out for how you plan to help close the gap on eq uitableaccess. 

Had a chance to connect w it h Andyearliertodownload on his call with--seems like there's alignment here. 

Excited to meet- Could talk tomorrow in the 4-5 hour ET tomorrow. 

Afa sharing data, that's great.Again, as I've said, what we are lookingfor is the universe and scale of t he problem. You 
noted thatthere is a level below sensational stories that get down-ranked, which took the form of general skepticism. I 
think it is helpful to know where you t hink the biggest issue is. I think we are al I aligned that the problem does not sit in 
"microchi ps"-land, and that it seems plausiblethatthe t hings that drive the most actual hesitancy sit in "sensational" 
and "skeptical." If you're down ranking sensational stuff-great- but I want to know how effective you've seen that be 
from a market research perspective. And then, what i nterventions are being taken on "skepticism?" I could see a range 
of actions, including hitti ngthem good information, boosting information f rom sources they've indicated they trust, 
promoting content from thei r friends who have beenvaccinated ........ what are you trying here, and again, how effective 
have you seen it be. And critically, what amount of content is fall i ng into all of these buckets? Is there wider scale of 
skepticism than sensationalism? I assume given the Carnegie data and the studies I've seen in the press that you have 
this. While I think you and I both know that access to the study's top lines and a crowdtangle account aren'tgoingto get 
us the info we're looking for, it shows to me that you at least understand the ask. 

As I've said: this is not to play gotcha. It is to get a sense of what you are doing to manage this. This is a real ly tricky 
problem. You and I might disagree on the plan, but I want to get a sense of the problem and a sense of what you 
solutions are. 

On whatsapp, which I may seem like I'm playing gotcha, but I guess I'm confused about how you're measuring reduction 
of harm. If you can't seethe message, I'm genuinelycurious-howdo you know what kinds of messages you've cut 
down on? Assumingyou'vegota good mousetrap here, that's the kind of info we're looking for above: what 
interventions you've taken, and what you've found to work and not work? And how effective are you seei ngthe good 
information on Whatapp be? Are you doing cross platform campaign work to try to reduce people's exposure on 
whatsapp? As we worry about equity and access, Whatsapp is obviously a central part of that given its reach i n 
immigrant communities and communities of color. 

You've given us a commitment to honest, transparent conversations about this. We're looking for that, and hoping we 
can be partners here, even ifit hasn't worked so far. I know Andy is w illingtogeton the phone with - a couple of 
ti mes perweekif its necessary to get al I of this. 

Looking forward. 

From: fb.com> 
Sent: Monday, March 22, 2021 12:53 PM 
To: Slavitt, Andrew M. EOP/WHO who.eop.gov> 
Cc: Flaherty, Rob EOP/WHO who.eop.gov> 
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Re: Followup- Friday call w -
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Thanks Andy. Also-wanted toflaga discussion we are scheduled to have with egardingsomework 
around equitable vaccine adoption-just a touch-base conversation total kthrough ideas we have forclosingthe 
adoption gap in communities disproportionately impacted byCovid and to discuss how we can be supportive overall in 
the US re: an equity strategy. We were connectedwith~ hoscheduled the conversation-just didn't want any 
surprises. 

From: Slavitt, Andrew M . EOP/WHO who.eop.gov> 

Date: Monday, March 22, 2021 at 9:37 AM 
To: fb.com> 

Cc: Fla herty, Rob EOP/WHO who.eop.gov> 

Thanks-~nd I wi ll c0onnectandfollowup. 

From: fb.com> 
Sent: Sunday, March 21, 202111:25 PM 
To: Slavitt, Andrew M. EOP/WHO 
Cc: Flaherty, Rob EOP/WHO 
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Follow up - Friday cal I w 

Andy, 

who.eop.gov> 

Thanks for taking the time to connect on Friday. Per our discussion, I wanted to follow up with next steps: 

1. Consistent Product Team POC: As discussed, we wi II make who has been coordinating t he 
product work that matters most to your teams, available on a regularbasis. If it makes sense, we can schedule some 
timefor- o connect with you and/or Rob (and whomever else makes sense) earlythisweek. 
2. Sharing Additional Data: llllllllnentioned the new internal analytics that we are developing to help us 
understand and monitor t he most viral COVIDvacci ne-related content. This isa top priority for us, and we wi II keep you 
updated on our progress and when we expect to be able to share the data with you. 
3. Levers for Tackling Vaccine Hesitancy Content: You also asked us about our levers for reducing vi ralityof 
vaccine hesitancy content. In addition to policies previously discussed, these include the additional changes that were 
approved late last week and that we' l l be implementingoverthe coming weeks. As you know, in addition to removing 
vaccine misinformation, we have been focused on reduci ng the viral ity of content discouraging vaccines that does not 
contain actionable misinformation. Thi s is of ten-true content, which we al low at the post level because experts have 
advised us that it is important for people to be able to discuss both thei rpersonal experiences and concerns about the 
vaccine, but it can be framed as sensation, alarmist, or shocking. We'I I remove these Groups, Pages, and Accounts when 
they are disproportionately promoting this sensationalized content. More on this front as we proceed to implement. 
4. WhatsApp: Finally-llllllnentionedthe policiesthatapplytoWhatsApp. WhatsApp'sapproachto 
misinformation focuses on limiting the virality of messages, preventing coordinated abuse, and empowering users to 
seek out reliable sources of information both in and out of the product. Our product includes features to Ii mit t he 
spread ofviral content, such as forward limits and labels, privacy settings to help users decide who can add them to 
groups, and simple ways for users to block accounts and make reports to WhatsApp if theyencounter problematic 
messages. Additional I imitations we placed in April 2020 on forwarding of messages that have been forwarded many 
ti mes reduced these kinds of messages by over 700/o. 

Along with these commitments, we'll continue to provide updated data from our COVID-19SymptomSurvey,and would 
be happy to walk t hrough this data with our research di rector, if helpful. 

Thanks agai n--and please let me know if there's anything I'm missing or can fol low upto clarify. 
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From: 

Sent: 
To: 
Subject : 

CONFIDENTIAL 

fb.com] 

4/10/20219 :33:25 PM 
Flaherty, Rob EOP/WHO ~ who.eop.gov] 
[EXTERNAL) Re: Fol lowup--WA responses 

Understood. I thought we weredoinga betterjobthrough - espondingtothis-and we areworkingto get the 
data t hat wi II more clearlyshowthe universe of the Covid content t hat's highest in distribution with a clear picture of 
what percentage of that contentisvax hesitancy content, and how we are addressing it. I know . old Andy that 
would take a bitoftimetonail down and we are working on that universe of data. I will make sure we're more clearly 
respondingtoyour questions below. 

From: Flaherty, Rob EOP/WHO who.eop.gov> 

Date: Friday, April 9, 2021 at 2:56 PM 
To: fb.com> 
Subject: RE: Fol low up--WA responses 

Thanksforthis,~ oor should betryingto land a time. 

Will say I'm really mostly interested in what effects the interventions and products you've tested have had on increasing 
vaccine interest w ithin hesitant communities, and which ones have shown promise. Really couldn't care less about 
products unless they' re having measurable impact. And while the product safari has been interesting, at the end of the 
day, I care mostly about what actions and changes you're making to ensure sure you're not makingourcountry's vaccine 
hesitancy problem worse. I definitely have what I believe to be a non-comprehensive list of products you're building but 
I stil I don't have a good, empirical answer on how effective you've been at re dud ng the spread of vaccine -skeptical 
content and misinformation to vaccine fence sitters in the now-folded " lockdown." If- an speak to those things, 
great._,asn't been able to, but I'm sure someone there can. 

In the electoral context, you tested and deployed an algorithmicshiftthat promoted quality news and information about 
the election. This was reported in the New York Ti mes and also readily apparenttoanyone w ith cursory social listening 
tools. You only did this, however, after an election that you helped increase skepticism in, and an insurrection which was 
plotted, in large part, on your platform. And then you turned it back off. I want some assurances, based in data, that you 
are notdoingthe same thing again here. 

Hi Rob, 

Wanted to follow up on your additional questions about WhatsAp -- responses to your questions 
embedded in line and in blue below, along with a few attachments that are discussed in-line. Happy to 
discuss further. 

Also-happy to schedule our next session with- for Monday if you're interested. I know she was 
hoping to bring her colleague- to brainstonn on some ideas with you and Courtney. We can do this 
Monday or anytime next week. 
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Thanks, 

-
We also wanted to follow up on your questions about WhatsApp. I'm sure you're already attuned to this, 
but think it' s worth noting some of the key differences between a private messaging app like WhatsApp, 
and social media like Facebook and Instagram. Approximately 90 percent of the messages sent on 
WhatsApp are one-to-one, and the majority of group chats include fewer than ten people. WhatsApp 
does not promote content, and users do not build audiences or discover new people as they would on 
social media. 

Very aware© 

You' re right that without being able to see the content of messages on WhatsApp, we' re not able to 
measure prevalence (and, relatedly, reduction) of particular types of content. WhatsApp seeks to control 
the spread of misinformation and inform users through deliberate, content-agnostic product interventions 
-- things like labeling and limiting message forwards. The underlying idea there is that messages that did 
not originate from a close contact are less personal compared to typical messages sent on WhatsApp, and 
may be more prone to contain misinformation. The labels ("forwarded"; and "forwarded many times" if 
the message has been forwarded five times or more) are intended to prompt people to stop and think when 
they are reading a message and before they forward something, which may not be accurate. The forward 
limits (no more than five chats at time; one chat a time for highly forwarded messages), are intended to 
reduce their spread. As mentioned in my earlier note, when WhatsApp rolled out the limitation for highly 
forwarded messages to one chat at a time in April 2020, this resulted in a 70% reduction of those 
messages globally Of course, not all forwards are misinformation, so these are by nature somewhat blunt 
tools, but they are important ones -- and ones that many other messaging services don' t provide. 

A few additional things to note: 

1. WhatsApp also employs best-in-class spam detection technology to spot accounts engaging in 
mass messaging behavior, so they can't be used to spread spam or viral misinformation. We ban 
over 2 million accounts per month for bulk messaging behavior, 75% of them without a recent user 
report, which means our automated systems stop abuse before users can report them. (This white paper 
descnbes these systems in further detail.) 

We have a thing where we can't click links from emails - can you send me the llhite paper? 
White Paper is attached in PDF to this email. 

2. Another aspect of what WhatsApp does -- again without accessing the content of messages -- is to 
provide tools to empower users to seek out reliable sources of information. One way we've done this 
in the product is through a "search the web" feature we rolled out last August, which allows users to 
easily double check highly foiwarded messages they receive on WhatsApp by tapping a magnifying glass 
button in the chat to initiate a web search on their device browser. This helps users find news results or 
other sources of authoritative information about messages they have received from outside their close 
contacts -- and is available in English, Spanish, and other languages. 
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Can you show me what this might look like? What kind of testing have you seen around 
effectiveness? Are there other tactics you've deployed? Does exposure to forwarded messages 
change in any way the kinds of positive infonnation they're exposed to on Facebook or lnstagram? 

Attached is an image explaining how "Search the Web" functions on WhatsApp - and you can find more 
info at this link: >>https//blog.whatsapp.com/search-the-web/?lang=en<<. As we have rolled out 
Search the Web over the past year, we have conducted research - through interviews and surveys - to 
understand how users interact with this feature, what level of awareness they have about it and 
particular I y, how it is used by low digital literacy users. Along similar lines, we are continuing to 
experiment with different forward depths that classify a message as a ''Highly Forwarded Message" and 
bring up the magnifying glass button for that message. We will use these insights to design further 
product features that limit virality on WhatsApp. 

With respect to your question about COVID-related information people may be exposed to Facebook and 
Instagram, that is not related to users' personal messaging activity on WhatsApp. 

3. WhatsApp also has partnerships with fact checking organizations, government agencies, and 
international organizations, like the WHO, around the world to make authoritative information about 
COVID-19 and vaccines available via WhatsApp. WhatsApp donated $IM to the International Fact 
Checking Network (IFCN) to support the CoronaVirusFacts Alliance, which brought together more than 
100 fact checkers in 70+ countries in 40+ languages. These organizations have produced 9,000+ unique 
fact checks, all of which are accessible through a global fact-checking bot jointly created by the IFCN and 
WhatsApp. 

How do they make the infonnation available? 

CO VID-19 information is made available on WhatsApp by WHO, government health ministries, and 
third-party fact checkers through our WhatsApp Business API solution, which supports two-way 
conversational messaging and one-way notifications. These organizations access our API through 
approved business solutions providers (BSPs) to build chatbots on the WhatsApp Business API that are 
capable of returning automated responses to user queries. We support government partners by waiving 
WhatsApp fees associated with the API and making available Facebook ads credits to publicize these 
chatbots. For some fact checkers, we cover the BSP and end client costs through annual grants. 

Users click on a link on the organization' s website to open the chat or text "hi" to the chatbot' s phone 
number. This brings them to a greeting message where they are presented with options to search for 
information on a CO YID-related topic, access latest fact checks, or get tips to fight misinformation, 
among other things. The requested information is then provided in a variety of ways. 

The WHO Health Alert on WhatsApp, for example, provides information about how vaccines work and 
how they are tested as a text message in response to a user query. It also provides users with links to 
videos of WHO's "Science in 5" series where scientists discuss commonly asked questions about the 
Covid-19 Vaccines. The latest edition of this discussion is also sent to the user' s chat as an audio clip for 
ease of access. 

The IFCN chatbot which leverages the CoronaVirusFacts Alliance database of COVID-19 
misinformation allows users to search for fact checks based on keywords and will provide the latest fact­
checks from networks in the user' s country as determined by the user' s phone number. 

Screenshots of the WHO Health Alert and IFCN chatbot are attached. 
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4. We're very cognizant ofWhatsApp's use among immigrant commumt1es in the U.S. and we're 
focused on ensuring these sorts of resources noted above are available in Spanish as well as English. 
During the 2020 election we partnered with Univision and Telemundo to make IFCN's election-related 
fact checks available in Spanish. Both Univision and Telemundo are now in the process of getting 
approved as certified IFCN fact checkers, which will enable them to set up their own Spanish-language 
fact checks directly on WhatsApp with financial support from Facebook. This will add to existing 
Spanish-language resources available via WhatsApp, including the search the web feature and the 
CoronaVirusFacts Alliance bot mentioned above. 

Is this true in other languages? I'm thinking specifically about languages that have prevalence in 
south Asian countries. And in the electoral context, what did you do there that worked and you're 
taking into this body of work? 

We encourage our partners to make their resources available as widely as possible. The IFCN CoronaVirusFacts 
Alliance chatbot is already available in the US in 4 languages - English, Hind~ Spanish and Portuguese. The 
Search the Web feature is currently available in English, Spanish, German, Italian and French; we have been 
working to expand the feature and it's available to South Asian language markets in Android Beta (~25M users) 
but the quality of search results is not yet high enough for a full launch. 
US 2020 was the biggest fact checking effort that WhatsApp supported and we're pleased that these efforts 
have helped to spur progress in the broader fact checking ecosystem. The partnerships we built with 
Telemundo and Univision, helped lead to both companies establishing their own specialized Spanish-language 
fact checking units - EL Detector and T Verifica, respectively - and hiring data analysts and translators to aid 
their fact checking efforts. 
We are also proud of the work that we did with IFCN during the US 2020 election to help create a consortium 
of fact checkers, which allowed these organizations to pool resources and scale their operations. We have been 
building on the success of this model elsewhere in the world - including in India where we have worked with 
six Indian fact checking organizations to build a similar coalition that will consolidate fact checks and trends on 
a common website. 

One other initiative we are focused on are partnerships with governments, private healthcare providers, 
and pharmacies to support COVID-19 vaccination efforts through chat tools on WhatsApp. We've 
launched these successful! y so far in Indonesia, Braz.ii, South Africa, and Argentina, among other 
countries, and are very interested in exploring ways to replicate some of these efforts in the U.S., 
especially in boosting the vaccination effort within the Latinx community. We are in discussions with the 
CDC and with officials in California, Delaware, and Los Angeles, and we are keen to work together to 
expand the scope and reach of these partnerships. 

I guess I have the same question here as I do on Facebook on Instagram. Do you guys think you 
have this under control? You're obviously going to say yes to that, so I guess the real question is, as 
ever: how are you measuring success? Reduction in forwarding? Measured impact across Facebook 
properties? 

On WhatsApp, reduction in forwards is just one of the signals that we use to measure how well we are 
doing in reducing viral activity on our platform. We also ban accounts that engage in mass marketing or 
scam behaviors - including those that seek to exploit COVID-19 misinformation. Our efforts in this space 
are more comprehensive than anything that our peers in private messaging or SMS do, and we are 
constantly innovating to stay ahead of future challenges. 
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We also track engagement with some of the tools available on WhatsApp that provide access to fact 
checks and other authoritative sources of information. For instance, 3 billion messages related to COVID-
19 have been sent by governments, nonprofits and international or§mizations to citizens through official 
WhatsApp chatbots, and over 300 million messages have been sent over COVID-19 vaccine helplines on 
WhatsApp during the 1st quarter of 2021. 
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From: 

Sent: 
To: 

CC: 
Subject : 

fb.com) 

4/14/20215:23:05 PM 
Flaherty, Rob EOP/WHO 
Slavitt, Andrew M . EOP/WHO 
[EXTERNAL) Re: tucker 

CONFIDENTIAL 

Thanks- I saw the same thing when we hung up. Running this down now. 

Get Outlook for iO S 

From: Flaherty, Rob EOP/WHO~ who.eop.gov> 
Sent: Wednesday, Apri 114, 2021 1:10:41 PM 
To: fb.com> 
Cc: Slavitt,Andrew M. EOP/WHO who.eop.gov> 
Subject: tucker 

Si nee we've been on the phone -the top post about vaccines today is tu eke r Carl son saying t hey don't work. Yesterday 
was Tomi Lehren sayings he won't take one. This is exactly why I want to know what "Reduction" actually looks like-if 
"reduction" means "pumping our mostvacci ne hesitant audience with tuckerCarlson saying it doesn't work" then ... l'm 
not sure it' s reduction! 

Rob Flaherty 
Directorof Digital Strategy 

The White House 
Cell : 
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From: fb.com) 

Sent: 
To: 

4/14/20216 :14 :25 PM 
Flaherty, Rob EOP/WHO who.eop.gov]; Rowe, Courtney M. EOP/WHO 

Subject : 
who.eop.gov] 

Re: [EXTERNAL) Re: Con nee ti ng 

Hey- I'm really sorry, I missed this ahead of the 11:00. We will definitely prioritize forfuture. Andworkingon both 
immediate follow ups-running down question on Tucke rand working on getti ng you report by end of week. 

Get Outlook foriOS 

From: Flaherty, Rob EOP/WHO 
Sent: Wednesday, Apri 114, 2021 10:50 AM 
To:- Rowe, Courtney M. EOP/WHO 
Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] Re : Connecting 

who.eop.gov> 

- Given the briefing at 11 and Andy's i nterest injoining, I am wondering if it might be good to consider pushing 
back. If we were to do that, would anything between noon and 1:30work? lf not, we can proceed andfolkscan joi n as 
they get free. 

From fb.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, Ap ri 114, 2021 10:15 AM 
To: Rowe Courtney M. EOP /WHO who.eop.goV>; Flaherty, Rob EOP/WHO 

who.eop.gov> 
Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL) Re: Connect ing 

Great thanks-Courtney we will follow up on anythi ng t hat comes out of the 11:00. 

From: Rowe, Courtney M. EOP/WHO who.eop.gov> 

Date: Wednesday, April 14, 2021 at 10:12 AM 
To: Flaherty, Rob EOP/WHO w ho.eop.gov>, 

Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL) Re : Connecting 

We have our press briefing this morning at 11 so I won't be there. 

fb.com> 

Thanks forsendingthe stuff below. I just pinged CDC on the FAQ and we will share as soon as they have 

From: Flaherty, Rob EOP/WHO 
Sent: Wednesda A ri 114, 2021 10:07 AM 
To fb.com>; Rowe, Courtney M. EOP/WHO who.eop.gov> 
Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] Re : Connecting 

I will be there, yes. 

From~fb.com> 
Sent:~02110:04 AM 
To: Flaherty, Rob EOP/WHO 

who.eop.goV> 
Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL) Re: Connecting 

who.eop.goV>; Rowe, Court ney M. EOP /WHO 
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Just confirming wit h you both that 11:00 this morning sti II works? You should have calendar invites-Courtney I saw you 
were not on our invite but added you. 

From: fb.com> 

Date: Tuesday, Apri l 13, 2021 at 11:29 PM 
To: Flaherty, Rob EOP/WHO who.eop.gov>, Rowe, Courtney M. EOP/WHO 

who.eop.gov> 
Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL) Re: Connecting 

Hi Rob, Courtney, 

Thanks for this quick response -it was super helpful in informing our overall strategy today. I have some responses 
in blue below. I'm lookingforwardtothe meeting tomorrow and hoping we can spend some time responding to Rob's 
feedback from last week as well as furtherdiscussing the J&J news and how we can hopefully partnertogether. 

Courtney-as we discussed, we also wanted to send over some examples of content we see on our platform that we 
remove (misinformation & harm) as well as content we take other actions on, but do not remove (vaccine hesitancy). I 
have included some exampl es at the bottom of this email and happy to setup t imetotalkthrough this more w ith you as 
well, if helpful. 

Talk soon, -Some kind of thing that puts the news in context if fol ks have seen it (likeyourcurrent "COVID news" panel) that has 3 -
4 pieces of info (eg: Adverse events are very rare - 6 cases out of nearly 7 mil lion, the FDA and CDC are reviewing so it 
health care providers know how to treat any of the rare events, this does not affect pfizeror moderna, which vaccinate 
via a different mechanism). Happy to provide what those things should be. If the ultimate product pulls in social from 
others, we' re happy to putsomethi ngtogetherthere as wel I. 

Thanks very much for the suggestion --we are consistently updating the news module to provide timely and relevant 
context to users, such as article(s) that provide context on the rarity of experiencing blood clots . We would love any 
suggestions you all would have on trends you' re seeing. 

• CDC is working through an FAQ that we'd love to have amplified in whatever way possible-maybe through the 
COVID info panel. 

Thanks--we'I I be on the lookout for the FAQ and can discuss tomorrow. 

• A commitment from you guys to make sure that a favorable review reaches as many people as the pause, either 
through hard product interventions or algorithmicamplification 

Would love to talk through this one a bit more. Our goal is to ensure that people have access to authoritative info about 
the vaccine. We're looking forward to talki ng more tomorrow about our approach to sharing authoritative info and 
what we've done today in support of that goal given theJ&J announcement. 

More broadly : we shar~ oncern about knock-on effects and are curious to get a read from your CMU data about 
what you're seeing and with whom. Moreover, I want to make sure you have eyes on what might be spinning off the 
back end of t his-that the newsaboutJ&J doesn't spin off misinformation. Would be great to get a 24 hour report-back 
on w hat behavioryou're seeing. 

We will looktogetyou insights as soon as we have them. Weare going to be watching to see how this plays out over 
the nextcoupleof days.- sjoiningtomorrow and plans to share a couple th ings we are seeingemergefrom the 
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CMU survey and what we are going to be watching ove rthe next few days. Also, we are proactively monitoring and 

seeingwhatthemesemerge from content on-platform and happy to share out when we have stuff collected. 

VACCINE HESffANCYEXAMPLES: 

The following examples of content are those that do not violate our Misinformation and Harm policy, but may 
contribute to vaccine hesitancy or present a barrier to vaccination. This includes, for example, content that 
contains sensational or alarmist vaccine misrepresentation, disparaging others based on the choice to or to not 
vaccinate, true but shocking claims or personal anecdotes, or discussing the choice to vaccinate in terms of 
personal and civil liberties or concerns related to mistrust in institutions or individuals. We utilize a spectrum of 
levers for this kind of content that is both proportionate and also helps our users make informed decisions. 
Actions may include reducing the posts' distribution, not suggesting the posts to users, limiting their 
discoverability in Search, and applying Inform Labels and/or reshare friction to the posts. Depending on the 
category of content, we scale our interventions to have the highest public health impact, while understanding 
that healthy debate and expression is important. 

I 'I 
• 
l 

CH I LDRENSHEALTH DEFENSE. ORG 

Scientists Warn of Potential COVID Vaccine-Related 'Ticking Time 
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CONFIDENTIAL 

Exanples of Content Removed for Violating our Misinformation & Harm Policy 
The following are examples of posts we have removed for violation of our Misinformation & Harm Policy. 
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From: Flaherty, Rob EOP/WHO ~ who.eop.gov> 

Date: Tuesday, April 13, 2021 at 1:33 PM 

To fb.com>, Rowe, Courtney M. EOP/WHO 
Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] Re: Connecting 

Thanks for reaching out. Andy might reply t- eparately, but here's some thoughts. 

I'm putting our public messaging below, which will be updated and we'll be suretosendtoyou. 

But generally, I think some combo of the followingwould be helpful: 

who.eop.gov> 

• Some kind ofthi ng that puts the news in context if folks have seen it (Ii ke your current "COVID news" panel)that 
has 3-4 pieces of i nfo(eg: Adverse events are very rare -6 cases out of nearly 7 million, the FDA and CDC are reviewing 

so it health care providers know how to treat any of the rare events, this does not affect pfzieror moderna, which 
vaccinate via a different mechanism). Happy to provide what those things should be. If the ultimate product pulls in 
social from others, we're happy to put something together there as well. 
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• CDC is working through an FAQ that we'd love to have amplified in whatever way possible -maybe through the 
COVID info panel. 
• A commitment from you guys to make sure that a favorable review reaches as many people as the pause, either 
th rough hard product intervent ions or algorithmic amplification 

More broadly: we share-=oncern about knock-on effects and are curious to get a read from your CMU data about 
what you're seeing and with whom. Moreover, I want to make sure you have eyes on what might be spinningoffthe 
back end of this-that the newsaboutJ&J doesn't spin off misinformation. Would be greattoget a 24 hour report-back 
on what behavioryou're seeing. 

Message below, and thanks 

-Rob 

As of April l 2, nearly 7 million J&J doses have been administered. CDC and FDA are investigating 6 cases of 
an extreme/,y rare type of blood clot in individuals after receiving the J&J vaccine. As CDC and FDA noted in 
their statement, right now these adverse events appear to be extremely rare. Out of an abundance «f caution as 
they review these rare cases, CDC and FDA are recommending vaccine providers pause on administering the 
J&J vaccine. As FDA noted this morning. they hope to review this quickly over the next few days. This pause is 
important so health care providers know how to treat any individuals who may experience these rare events. 

This announcement will not have a significant impact on our vaccination plan: J&J vaccine makes up less than 
5 percent of the recorded shots in arms in the United States to date. Based on actions taken by the President 
earlier this year, the U.S. has secured enough Pfizer and Moderna doses for 300 million Americans. You can 
read the full statement from White House COVID-19 Response Coordinator JefJZients on the impact on supply 
here. 

We will be back in touch soon to share additional resources and messaging on this issue, as well as our broader 
efforts to advance vaccine confidence and protect America's health. 

From: fb.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, April 13, 202112:21 PM 
To: Rowe Courtney M. EOP /WHO 

who.eop.gov> 
Subject: FW: [EXTERNAL] Re: Connecting 

who.eop.goV>; Flaherty, Rob EOP /WHO 

Courtney and Rob-making sure you also receive this message-we want to get ahead of th is but also want to make 

sure we are amplifying the right messages. Let us know if helpful to connect quickly today? 

From: fb.com> 

Date: Tuesday, A pri l 13, 2021 at 12:18 PM 

To: Slavitt, Andrew M . EOP/WHO who.eop.gov> 

Cc: fb.com> 

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Re: Connecting 

Hi Andy 

Hope this finds you we 11 ? 
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Re the J+J news, we're keen to ampl ify any messaging you want us to project about what this means for people - i t 
obviously has the risk of exacerbatingvacci ne hesitancy, so we're keen to get ahead of the knock-on effect. Don' t 
hesitate to tell me -or via your teams - how we can help to provide clarity/reassurance via Face book. 

All v best 

-
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From: 

Sent: 
To: 
CC: 
Subject : 

fb.com] 
4/16/20218 :45:51 PM 
Flaherty, Rob EOP/WHO 
Slavitt, Andrew M . EOP /WHO 

CONFIDENTIAL 

Re: [EXTERNAL] FW: Tucker Carlson anti-vax message. 

Hey Rob-understood and sorry for the delay. The team has been heads-down since our conversation to produce the 
report we discussed on Wednesday afternoon. We are aimingtogetyou somethingtonightaheadofthe weekend. We 
want to respond to your questions below as well but I have been hopingtogetthiswork completed and then to 
schedule a cal I to discuss. Would that work? 

From: Flaherty, Rob EOP/WHO who.eop.gov> 

Date: Friday, Apri l 16, 2021 at 4:37 PM 
To: fb.com> 

Cc: Slavitt, Andrew M. EOP/WHO who.eop.gov> 

Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] FW: Tucker Carlson anti -vax message. 

These questions weren't rhetorical 

From: Flaherty, Rob EOP/WHO 
Sent: Wednesday, Apri 114, 2021 11:35 PM 
To: fb.com> 
Cc: Slavitt,Andrew M. EOP/WHO who.eop.gov> 
Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL) FW: Tucker Ca rl son ant i -vax message. 

And sorry - if t his was not one of the most popular posts about the vaccine on Face book today, then what good is 

crowdtangle? 

- aid that Tomis video was the most popularyesterday based on your data, which reflected whatCTwas 
showing. Tuckers video was top on CT today. What is differentaboutthisvideo, then? 

Sent from my i Phone 

On Apr 14, 2021, at 11:29 PM, Flaherty, Rob EOP/WHO who.eop.goV> wrote: 

I guess th is isa good example of your rules in practice then - and a chance to dive in on questions as they're applied. 

How was this not violative?Thesecond half of the segment is raisingconspiracytheories about the government hiding 
that al I vaccines aren' t effective. It's notaboutjustJ&J. What exactly is the rule for removal vs demoting? 

Moreover:you say reduced and demoted. What does that mean?There's40,000 shares on the video. Who is seei ng it 
now? How many? How effective is that? 

And we've gone a million rounds on this in other contexts so pardon what may seem like deja vu - but on what basis is 
"visit the covid-19information center forvaccine resources" the bestthingtotag to a video that says the vaccine 
doesn't work? 
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Not for noth ing but last time we did this dance, it ended i n an insurrection. 

Sent from my i Phone 

On Apr 14, 2021, at 11:11 PM, 

Making sure you receive--

From: fb.com> 

Date: Wednesday, April 14, 2021 at 10:51 PM 

To: Slavitt, Andrew M. EOP/WHO 
Cc: fb.com> 

Subject: Re: Tucke r Carlson anti-vax message. 

Hi Andy- have looked i nto this some more. 

fb.com> wrote: 

who.eop.gov> 

I realize it may be of Ii mited comfort at this moment, but t his was not the most po pular post about vaccines on 
Face book today. Our data is sl ightly lagging, and we'l l get back to you with more detail on t his specific post tomorrow. 
Right now, it appears that it probably was among the top 100 most-viewed vaccine posts. I'm including a few examples 
of posts that were more popular today at the end of th is note. 

Regardless of popularity, t he Tucker Ca rl son video does notqualifyfor removal underour pol icies. Following the 
government 's decision yesterday, we are allowing cl aims t hat the Johnson and Johnson vaccine causes blood clots, but 
we st ill do not allow categorical claims that itor other vaccines are unsafe or ineffective. 

That said, the video is being labeled with a poi ntertoauthoritativeCOVID information, it's not be ing recommended t o 
people, and it is being demoted. 

The team is working on t he fol low ups from the meeti ngthis morn ing, includ ing more detai Is on mostviewed/ranked 
content on Facebookand- will be in touch shortly on that - I'm v keen that we follow up as we 'd agreed, and I can 
assure you the teams here are on i t. 

Given the timelinethat was provided today forfurtherdecision about the J&J vaccine, i t would be great to get your 
guidance aboutwhataffi rmative messages we should amplify right now. Consistent with t he message we heard at the 
press conferences, we're currentlyemphasizingthe safety and efficacy of t he Moderna and Pfizervaccines i n the Covid 
Informat ion Center. 

Popular Vaccine-Related Content on Face book Today: 

CNN: »https://www.enn.com/2021/04/13/health/blood-clots-johnson- joh nson-vacci ne-well ness/index. html«; 
ABC: »https ://www. face book. com/10160902498218812< <; 
NBC: »https://www.nbcnews.com/heal th/hea lth-news/what-do-if-you-got-johnson-johnson-vacci ne-n1263927«; 
NY Ti mes:»https://www.nytimes.com/2021/04/13/us/pol it ics/joh nson-joh nson-vacci ne-blood-cl ots-f da-cdc. html«; 
CDC: »https://www.facebook.com/10159031890151026«; 
CBS: »https ://www.facebook.com/10159467 409732010«; 
Heather Cox Richardson: »https://www.facebook.com/297363371758902«; 

Allvbest 

-
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On 4/14/21, 10:52 AM, fb .com>wrote: 

Ok- sorry to hear about call today, will dig in now.■ 

On 4/14/21, 10:01 AM, "Slavitt, AndrewM. EOP/WHO" 

Numberone on Face book. Sigh. 

Big reveal ca ll with FBand WH today. No progress since we spoke. Sigh. 

Sent from my iPhone 

who.eop.gov>wrote: 
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From: 

Sent: 
To: 
Subject : 

fb.com] 

4/21/20219 :01:51 PM 
Flaherty, Rob EOP/WHO 

CONFIDENTIAL 

who.eop.gov] 
Re: [EXTERNAL] FW: Tucker Carlson anti-vax message. 

Rob-thanksfor catchi ng up earlier and sorry for the de lay in getting these back to you. We can schedule ti me to 
discuss any of this further if helpful. 

How was the Tucker post not violative? 
• while we remove content that explicitly directs people not to get the vaccine, as wel I as content that contains 
explicit misrepresentations about vaccines, we reviewed this contenti n detail and it does not violate those policies. 

Moreover: you say reduced and demoted. What does that mean? There's 40,000 shares on the video. Who is seeing it 
now? How many? How effective is that? 
• The video received 50%demotion for seven days while in the queue to be fact checked, and will continue to be 
demoted even though i t was not ultimatelyfactchecked. 

Why does CT tell a different story than ourinternal number? 
• Crowdtangle shows engagement not views, and a simple text search for"vaccine" in Crowdtangle doesn't have 
the same recall as our classifiers, i.e., doesn'tincludeal I of the posts about vaccines. The data that we provided doesn't 
include the TuckerCarlsonvideo because our data pipelines don't populatethatquickly -we provided data for the week 
before. (The delay in data doesn't mean we aren't able to find and remove violating content in real time-our systems 
do this automatically). 

Why label this content w ith ageneric"visitthe covid information center" message? 
• Our more granular label about vaccine safety previously said "COVI D-19vaccines go through many test for 
safety and effectively before they're approved". In light of the decision to pause the J&J vaccine, vaccine safety 
discussion evolved past"approval," and we were concerned that this was a confusing/irrelevant message to be applying 
to content discussion the decision to pause J&J without revoking approval. We temporarily reverted to a more generic 
message and are updating the more specific label forpostsaboutvacci ne safety to say "COVID-19 vaccines go through 
many tests for safety and effectiveness and then are monitored closely'' to try to adapt to the changi ngfactual situation 
and evolving discussion. This new message is being rolled out and should appear instead of the generic label now. 

From: Flaherty, Rob EOP/WHO who.eop.gov> 

Dat e: Friday, April 16, 2021 at 4:37 PM 
To: fb.com> 

Cc: Slavitt, Andrew M. EOP/WHO who.eop.gov> 
Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] FW: Tucker Carlson anti-vax message. 

These questions weren't rhetorical 

From: Flaherty, Rob EOP/WHO 
Sent: Wednesday, Apri 114, 2021 11:35 PM 
To: fb.com> 
Cc: Slavitt, Andrew M. EOP/WHO who.eop.gov> 
Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] FW: Tucker Ca rl son anti-vax message. 

And sorry - if this was not one of the most popular posts about the vaccine on Face book today, then w hat good is 
crowdtangle? 
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- aid that Tomis video was the most popularyesterday based on your data, which reflected whatCTwas 
showing. Tuckers video was top on CT today. What is different about this v ideo, then? 

Sent from my iPhone 

On Apr 14, 2021, at 11:29 PM, Flaherty, Rob EOP /WHO who.eop.goV> wrote: 

I guess this isa good example of your rules in practice then - and a chance to dive in on questions as they're appl ied. 

How was this not violative?The second halfof the segment is raisingconspiracytheories about the government hiding 
that al I vaccines aren't effective. It's notaboutjustJ&J. What exactly is the ru le for removal vs demoting? 

Moreover:you say reduced and demoted. Whatdoesthat mean?There's40,000 shares on the video. Who is seeing it 
now? How many? How effective is that? 

And we've gone a million rounds on thi s in other contexts so pardon what may seem like deja vu - but on what basis is 
"visit the covid-19information center forvaccine resources'' the bestthingtotag to a video that says the vaccine 
doesn't work? 

Not for nothing but last time we did t his dance, it ended in an insurrection. 

Sent from my iPhone 

On Apr 14, 2021, at 11:11 PM, fb.com>wrote: 

Making sure you receive--

From: fb.com> 

Dat e: Wednesday, April 14, 2021 at 10:51 PM 

To: Slavitt, Andrew M. EOP/WHO who.eop.gov> 

Cc: fb.com> 

Subject: Re: Tucker Carlson anti-vax message. 

Hi Andy- have looked into this some more. 

I realize it may be of Ii mited comfort at this moment, butthiswas not the most popular post about vaccines on 
Face book today. Our data is slightly lagging, and we'l l get back to you wit h more detail on th isspecificposttomorrow. 
Right now, it appears that it probably was among the top 100 most-viewed vaccine posts. I' m including a few examples 
of posts that were more popular today at the end of this note. 

Regardless of popularity, the Tucker Carlson video does not qualify for removal under our policies. Following the 
government's decision yesterday, we a re al lowi ngclai ms that the Johnson and Johnson vaccine causes blood clots, but 
we still do not allow categorical claims that itor other vaccines are unsafe or ineffective. 

That said, the video is being labeled with a pointertoauthoritativeCOVIDinformation, it's not being recommended to 
people, and it is being demoted. 
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The team isworkingon the followupsfromthe meeting this morning, including more details on most viewed/ranked 
content on Facebookand~ ill be in touch shortly on that - I'm v keen that we follow up as we 'd agreed, and I can 
assure you the teams here are on i t. 

Given t he t ime linethatwas provided today forfurtherdecision aboutthe J&J vaccine, it would be great to get your 
guidance aboutwhat affi rmative messages we shou Id ampl ify right now. Consistent with the message we heard at the 
press conferences, we're currentlyemphasizingthe safety and efficacy of the Moderna and Pfizer vaccines in the Covid 
Informat ion Center. 

PopularVaccine-Related Content on Face book Today: 

CNN: »https://www.enn.com/2021/04/13/health/blood -clots-johnson- joh nson-vacci ne-well ness/index. html«; 
ABC: »https://www.facebook.com/10160902498218812<<; 
NBC: » https://www.nbcnews.com/heal th/hea lth-news/what-do-if-you-got-johnson-johnson-vacci ne-n1263927«; 
NY Ti mes: »https://www.nytimes.com/2021/04/13/us/pol itics/joh nson-joh nson-vacci ne-b lood-cl ots-fda-cdc. html«; 
CDC: »https://www.facebook.com/10159031890151026«; 
CBS: »https:ljwww.facebook.com/10159467409732010«; 
Heather Cox Richardson: »https://www.facebook.com/297363371758902«; 

Allvbest 

-
On 4/14/21, 10:52 AM, fb. com>wrote : 

Ok- sorry to hear about call today, wi l l dig in now .• 

On 4/14/21, 10:01 AM, "Slavit t, AndrewM. EOP/WHO" 

Numberone on Face book. Sigh. 

Big reveal call with FBand WH today. No progress since we spoke. Sigh. 

Sent from my iPhone 

who.eop.gov>wrote: 
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From: 

Sent: 
To: 

googl e.com; googl e .com; . 

googl .c 
CC: Slavitt,Andrew M. EOP/WHO who.eop.gov]; H~WHO 

who.eop.gov]; Fitzpatrick, Kelsey V. EOP/WHO lllllllllllllllwho.eop.gov] 
Fol lowing Up on Today's Conversation Subject : 

All-Thanks again for the conversation today. 

We'll look out for the top t rends that you've seen in terms of misinformation around the vaccine. 

To recap: As we move away from a supply problem toward a demand problem, we remain concernedthatYoutube is 
"funneling" people into hesitance and intensifying people's hesitancy. We certainly recognize that removing content 
that is unfavorable to the cause of increasingvacci ne adoption is not a real istic-or even good- solution. Butwe want 
to be sure that you have a handle on vaccine hesitancy generally and are working toward maki ngthe problem better. 
This is a concern that is shared at t he highest(and I mean highest) levels of the WH, so we'd like to continue a good-faith 
dialogue aboutwhat isgoingon under the hood here. I'm the on the hook for reporting out. 

Just before we were meeting, this article from Buzzfeed popped, highlighting the Youtube misinformation that is 
spreading through the Vietnamese community. I think this brings up a question that I had in our first meeti ngaboutyour 
capabilities around misinformation in non-english-speakingcommunities. Clearly, more work to be done here. Would 
love to get some insights from you on how you aretacklingthis problem across all languages -how your enforcement 
has differed in languagesandwhatyourroad map to improvement is. 

A couple of otherthings it would be good to have from you all: 

• As mentioned up top, the top trends that you' re seeing in terms of misi nformation/hesitance inducing content 
(Stanford has mentioned that it's recently Vaccine Passports and J&J pause-related stuff, but I'm not sure if that reflects 
what you' re seeing) 

• A deeper dive on reduction and its effectiveness. It's helpful that you mentioned that watch time is your key 
metric. I believe you said you reduced watch time by 700/4 on "borderline" content, which is impressive. Obviously, the 
term "borderline" is moveable, but taking it for what it is: How does thattrack with vaccine-related content specifically 
(removingthe "UFO stuff"). What has the comparative reduction in watch time on "borderline"vaccine topics been 
afteryour i nterventions? And what has the increase in watch t ime been on authoritative information? 

• I appreciated yourunequivocal response that you are not recommending anti-vaccine content and you are 
lifting authoritative information in both search and recommendations to all audiences. Related to the second bullet: to 
what extent have your ranking interventions been effective there? And, perhaps more critical ly, to what degree is 
content from people who have been given a "strike" stil I being recommended and shown in prominent search 
positions? 
• I feel like I am not coming away with a very clear picture of how you're measuring the effectiveness of uplifting 
authoritative information. I obviously buy the theory-but how did you arrive on info-panels as the besti ntervention? 
And to what extent are people clickingthrough afterexposuretovacci ne-hesitant content? What are you doing 
mechanically to boost the authoritativelnformati on?When you have relevant Influencers speak to experts, I imagine 
(hope?) it's not just putti ng the content out there and that you're recommending itto people for whom it would be 
most relevant. How does t hat work? 
• What are the general vectors by w hich people see the "borderline" content-or really just vaccine-skeptical 
content? Is it largely through recommendations? Search? 

We are excited tocontinuingpartneringwithyou on this work as we have via but we want to make 
sure that the work extends to the broader problem. Needless to say, in a couple of weeks when we're having trouble 
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getting peop le to get vaccinated, we'll be in the barrel together here. We've worked with a number of platform partners 
to t rack down similar information based on internal data, including partners of similarscale. I am fee ling a bit like I don't 
have a ful I sense of the picture here. We speak with other platforms on a semi -regu lar basis. We'd love to get in this 
habit with you . Perhaps bi-weekly? 

Looking forward to more conversation. 

-Rob 

Rob Flaherty 
Director of Digi tal Strategy 
The White House 
Cell 
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From: 

Sent: 5/6/20216:17:28 PM 
To: fb.com] 

Subject : RE: [EXTERNAL) FW: COVID Genomic Sequencing 

So I guess I have two questions here: 

1. He references the "three" widest reach posts, of which I believe th is is one: 

https://www.facebook.com/DeeB1ock2S3/posts/3528944520539112 

For one, it's still up and seems to have gotten pretty far. And it's got 365k shares with four comments. We've talked 
about this i n a differentcontext, but how does something Ii kethat happen ?The top post, the one from the Wisconsin 
news station, has 2.1 mil lion comments. Am I looking atone instance of sharing (so, one of the 365,000 shares) or is this 
genui nely a post that has been shared nearly 400,000 ti mes but on ly four people commented on it? What is your 
assessmentofwhatisgoingon here? 

Won't come as a shock to you that we're particularly interested in yourdemotion efforts, which I don't think we have a 
good handle on (and, based on the below, it doesn't seem like you do either). Notto sound li ke a broken record, but 
how much content is being demoted, and howeffectiveare you at mitigating reach, and how quickly? As I've said, I 
don't think our position is that you should remove vaccine hesitant stuff. However, slowing it down seems reasonable. I 
j ust can't describe what it means or how you know its working. 

Also, health groups: sure. But it seems more likely thatanti -vaxstuff is moving in groups t hat are not about health but 
are ... mom centric, or other spaces.Strikes me as the issue here is less from single-use anti -vaccine accounts and more 
about people w ho ... do otherthings and are also vaccine hesitant. Seems like your"dedicated vaccine hesitancy'' policy 
isn't stop pi ngthe disinfo dozen-they're being deemed as not dedicated -- so it feels like that problem l ikely carries over 

to groups. 

As a last thing, I'd be interested in seeing this 100 ranking in termsofreach from th ings that you aren't actively 
promoting in the info panel. EG:the unicef one's reach is because you' re putting it in a big, giant box that says 
"Face book" on it, versus the way it distributes naturally. 

From: fb .com> 
Sent: Saturday, May 1, 2021 2:10 PM 
To: Flaherty, Rob EOP/WHO ~ who.eop.gov> 
Subject: FW: [EXTERNAL] FW: COVIDGenomicSequencing 

Making sure you see this fromlllllto Andy as well-around anytimetod iscuss any and all things ... 

From: fb.com> 

Date: Saturday, May 1, 2021 at 1:53 PM 

To: Slavitt, Andrew M. EOP/WHO 

Cc: fb.com> 

who.eop.gov> 

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] FW: COVID Genomic Sequencing 

Hi Andy, 

Thanks to your team for sharing the research work w ith us -the team have spent some ti me reviewi ngthese and I 
wanted to send over some detai ls on where we're developing work in this space (and where we aren't). 
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Firstly, I know~as sent the latest version of the Top 100 content report to Rob yesterday evening and I wanted to 
send you a quick note on the three pieces of vaccine content that were seen by a high number of people before we 
demoted them. Although they don't violate ourcommunity standards, we should have demoted them before they went 
viral and this has exposed gaps in our operational and technical process. 

The teams have spent the last 24 hrs analysing these gaps and are making a number of changes starting next week, 
i ncluding setting up more dedicated monitori ng forCovid vaccine content on the cusp of goi ngviral, applying st ronger 
demotions to a broader set of content, and setting up daily review and analysis so t hat we have a better real -time view 
of what is being seen by lots of people. I wil I be checking on this close ly to make sure that these additional steps show 
results - the stronger demotions in particular shou ld deliver real impact. Please let me know if you'd like to discuss any 
of this in more detail. 

Returning to the points raised by the research - much of th is is faircomment and actually includes many of the integrity 
efforts we've al ready deployed and are actively improving on, or are related to planned launches in the coming months. 

Non-Engl ish mis/disinformation circulating without moderation (Spanish, Arabic, Chinese, among others) and; ISO 
reports evidence of the global threat that anti-vaccination disinformation and misinformation represents across 
languages and borders: Roi Ii ng our efforts out global ly and in other countries wil I take us some time, given the 
comp lexity and scale -we think that this wi ll take a number of months before we've fully scaled this work and we are 
priori tizing languages where we know vaccine hesitancy is l ikely to be higher based on external data. 

Do not distribute or ampl ify vaccine hesitancy, and Facebook should end group recommendations for groups with a 
history of COVID-19 or vaccine misinformation: Much of the research you shared called on us to ensure that our 
systems don't amp I ify vaccine hesitancy content and this is top of mind for us. In addition to the changes I mentioned 
above, we have al ready removed all health groups from our recommendation feature on Face book, and on lnstagram 
we fi ltervacci ne-related accounts from our "accounts you may follow featu re". We also remove accounts that may 
discourage vaccination from search features . We currently enforce on hash tags we know are shared to promote vaccine 
hesitancy content and are working to improve our automated systems here. 

Monitoring events that host anti-vaccine and COVID disinformation: From our analysis, events do not make up a high 
proportion of borderline vaccine content that people see on Face book right now, but we are working to improve 
automatic detection for events hosting anti -vaccine and COVID content. Our viral monitoring efforts wi ll also help us 
detect events that are gaini ngviews on Face book, and we do remove events coordinating in -person gatherings that 
involve or encourage people who have COVID-19to join. 

12 accounts are responsible for73% of vaccine misinformation: Lastly, we continue to review accounts associated with 
the 12 ind ividuals identified in the CCDH "Disinformation Dozen" report, but many of those either do not violate our 
policies or have ceased postingviolatingcontent. Our"Dedicated Vaccine Discouraging Entity" pol icy is designed to 
remove groups and pages that are dedicated to shari ngvacci ne discouraging content and we continue to review and 
enforce on these where we become aware of them. 

I realise that our posit ion on this continues to be a parti cularconcern for you which is why our teams regularly engage 
with a ra nge of experts to checkwhetherwe are striking the right balance here. In early March, for instance, we 
discussed our planned approach with members of the "High Leve l Panel on Vaccine Confidence & Misinformation" 
(organized by London School of Hygiene and Tropica l Medicine and t he CenterforStrategicand International Studies) 
and we have checked more recentlywit h~ f the Vaccine Confidence Project too. 

Among experts we have consulted, there is a general sense that deleting more expressions of vaccine hesitancy might be 
more counterproductive to t he goal of vaccine uptake because it cou Id prevent hesitant people from talking th rough 
theirconcerns and potentially reinforce the notion thatthere's a cover-up (especially, though not exclusively, in the US). 
Given how complicated this continues to be, especially due to the recent news cycle aboutthe safety of some vaccines, 
we will of course continue to speak with experts on our position here and adapt our approach as needed. 
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Hope this update is helpful-and obviously I'm happy to speak anytime. 

Best 

1111 

On 4/27/21, 3:33 AM, "Slavitt,Andrew M. EOP/WHO" who.eop.gov>wrote: 

Thanks - I assume you may have staff there. I hope they are wel l. 

Sentfrom myiPhone 

> On Apr 27, 2021, at 12:11 AM, 

> 
> Hi Andy 
> 

fb.com>wrote: 

> I know you're focusing on Ind ia a fair amount. Just fyi, we're doi ngthe following: 

> 
> - Amplifying localized authoritative information and services specific to this crisis ( e.g., symptom triage information/ 

when to go or not go to a hospital given systems are overwhelmed) on platform and via ad credits; 
> - Activating WhatsApp Bots for symptom tracking and to connect users to nearby health resources; 
> - Curating relevant content across CIC, News, and Latest Updates for India; 
> - Proactive ly reviewing misinformation content i n Engl ish, Hindi, and Benga li; and 
> - Making an up to $10M financial contribution to support some immediate needs in country (e.g., extending medical 

supp lies to underprivi leged, augmenting oxygen supply shortages, etc.) 

> 
> And lllllis keen to see what more we can do 
» >https:/ /www.facebook.com/zuck/posts/10112926954780791 «; 

> 
>11111111& team are in touch with USAID - but don't hesitate to point us to other next steps where we could be hel pful. 

> 
> We also received the recommendations/observations from the research organizations you met re covid misi nfoetc 

this afternoon -the teams are now looking at them carefully, and I'll get back to you once that's done. 

> 
> Best 
> >-> 
> On 4/22/21, 7:23 PM, "Slavitt, Andrew M. EOP /WHO" who.eop.gov>wrote: 

> 
> I w i ll arrange a cal l. Please let- now the information on who to include. Thanks 

> 
> Sent from my iPhone 

> 
» On Apr 22, 2021, at 7:58 PM, 
>> 
» Hi Andy 

>> 

fb.com>wrote: 

» As promised, more info from 

connection can be made. 

el ow and slides re the CZI work attached. Do te ll me how an usefu l 

>> 
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» Thx 

>> 
» .. 
>> 
>> 

CONFIDENTIAL 

» Thanks forlooking intothis. CZI has been working in this area since before the pandemic. We built IDSeq 
(Link<>»https://www.discoveridseq.com/<< <>and technical write up attached) to sequence unknown pathogens and 
then adapted itto do genomicsequencingforCOVIDand California Departments of public health. Right now we are 
working with local departments that are deploying these funds to bui ld up th eiri nternalcapacity. However, we can't 
figure out if there is a centralized vision of how al l of these individual efforts are supposed to come back together and if 
they do whatthe publicofficerfacing tool is. Sl ides on the issue we are trying to address is also attached. 

>> 
» Would love to try to learn about any central plan to ensure t hat our work ends up being compatible and share back 

any learning if helpful. 
>> 
>> 
>> 
> 
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From: 

Sent: 
To: 
CC: 
Subject: 

CONFIDENTIAL 

5/12/20212:52:18 PM 
fb.com] 

Rowe, Courtney M . EOP/WHO ■■■■■■l§lwho.eop.gov] 
RE: [EXTERNAL) FB News room post tomorrow re: our Covi d work 

Sure. They're first connected to authoritative information, but then you, as of last night, were presenting an anti -vaccine 
account with less than 1000 followers alongside, at level, w ith those pinned accounts! 

Here's the t hing. You know and I know that the universe of undecided peoplesearchi ng lnstagram for"vaccines" -as 
compared to, say, Google -- is probably low. But "removing bad information from search" is one of the easy, low-bar 
things you guys do to make people like me think you're taking action. If you're not getting that right, it raises even more 
questions about the higher bar stuff. You say in your note that you remove accounts that discourage vaccination from 
appearing in recommendations (even though you're using "primarily" to give yourself wiggle room) . You also said you 
don't promote those accounts in search. Not sure what else t here is to say. 

Youtube, fortheirwarts, has done pretty wel l at promoting authoritative i nfo in search results while keeping the bad 
stuff off of those surfaces. Pinterest doesn't even show you any results other than official information when you search 
for "vaccines." I don't know why you guys can't figure this out. 

From: fb.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, May 12, 2021 9:35 AM 
To: Flaherty, Rob EOP/WHO 
Cc: Rowe, Courtney M. EOP /WHO who.eop.gov> 
Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] FB Newsroom post tomorrow re: our Covid work 

Thanks Rob - both of the accounts featured in the tweet have been removed from lnstagram entirelyfor breaking our 
policies. We're lookingintowhat happened. 

Taking a step back, when searching for terms related to vaccines on lnstagram, people are first connected with 
resources from experts. That means that before anything, if someone is looking to get information about COVID-19or 
vaccines, they are encouraged to seek that information out from the most credible sources. To do this, anyone who 
searches for information related to COVID-19orvaccines on lnstagram is first shown an educational pop-up on top of 
search resul ts connecting them, in the U.S., to the CDC website (as shown in the tweet). We've also pinned authoritative 
accounts in t he top search results which is why you also see the CDC and Gavi, the Vaccine All iance lnstagram accounts 
first in the resu Its page. 

We are continuing to develop technology to improve the quality of search results at scale across lnstagram - this is a 
continua l process built on new technology to address adversarial accounts. Our goal is to not recommend accounts l ike 
those shown in the tweet in search, which again shouldn't have been on our platform to begin w ith. We also 
re move accounts that may discourage vaccination from search by developing and using t his new technology to find 
accounts on lnstagram that discourage vaccines, and remove these accounts from search altogether. We've also 
removed accounts that primarily discourage vaccination from appearing where we recommend new accounts to follow, 
such as accounts you may like, and suggested accounts. 

We clearly stil l have work to do to, but wanted to ensure you were aware of the authoritative resources we're pointing 
people to fi rst as we continue investing in removing accounts from search that may discourage vaccination. 
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From: Flaherty, Rob EOP/WHO ~ who.eop.gov> 

Date: Tuesday, May 11, 2021 at 8:08 PM 
To: fb.com> 

Cc: Rowe, Courtney M. EOP/WHO who.eop.gov> 

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL) FB Newsroom post tomorrow re: our Covid work 

Hard to take any of this seriously when you're actively promoting anti-vaccine pages in search 

>https://twitter.com/jessreports/status/13921821615123619847s=21< 

Sent from my i Phone 

On May 10, 2021, at 7:53 PM, fb.com>wrote: 

Rob and Courtney- lwantedtopreviewa newsroom post and some additional press outreach that we plan to putout 
tomorrow with some updates on ourCovi d efforts-a large part of which w ill be focused on what we' ve been doing to 
help meetvaccination goals. 

Since January, we and our partners have been using trusted messengers and personalized messaging on our platforms to 
increase vaccine acceptance, and we're seeing positive impact at scale. Forexample: 

• Over3.3 mil lion people have visited thevaccinefi ndertool si nce its launch on March 11, using it to get 
appointment information from a provider's website, getdirectionstoa provider, or cal I a provider. In add ition, we're 
showing people reliable information aboutwhetherandwhen they' re eligible to get vaccinated through News Feed 
promotions and our COVID-19 Information Center. West Virgi nia's Department of Health and Human Resources 
reported that thei rvaccine registrations increased significantly after Face book started running these notifications. 

• Since January, we've provided more than $30 million in ad credits to help governments, NGOs and other 
organizations reach people w ith COVID-19vaccine i nformation and other important messages. These information 
campaigns resulted in an estimated lObillionad impressionsglobally. 

• More than 5 million people globally have used these profile frames. And more than 500/4 of people in the US on 
Face book have already seen someone use the COVID-19vaccine profile frames. We spun up this effort in partnership 
with HHS/CDC after public health experts told us that people are more likelytogeta vaccine when they see someone 
they trust doing it. 

• As you know, since Apri l 2020, we've been collaboratingwithCarnegie Mellon University and University of 
Maryland on a global survey of Face book users to gather insights about COVI D-19 symptoms, testing, vaccination rates 
and more. In the US: 

0 

adults. 
Vaccine acceptance has been i ncreasingsteadily since January, increasing nearly 10% among all US 

o We observed a particularly large increase in vaccine acceptance w ithin certain populations in the US. 
Vaccine acceptance increased 26%among Black adults and 14% among Hispanicadults. 

o Vaccine access also remains a cha I lenge. Among adults who intend to get vaccinated (but have not yet), 
36% feel uninformed about how to get a vaccine and only 22% reported that they have an appointment in April. 

We saw the announcement lastweekof the 70%goal, and we're eager to help supportyoureffortstoreach that goal by 
July 4th. In particular, through our work on both voter registration and vaccines, we've had success w ith a targeted 
strategy for ouri n-product messages. If there are specific states/regions (or ot her population segments) you're targeting 
to reach that goal that you can share with us, we can look at how we might be able to adjust ouri n -product efforts to 
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help ampl ifyyou refforts. We'd be happy to schedule a follow-up call with the right people to drill down on how we 
might be able to help with these efforts. 

As always let me know if you have any questions. 

Thanks, 

1111 
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From: fb.com) 

Sent: 7/17/202110:23:47 PM 
To: fb.com); Flaherty, Rob R. EOP/WHO ~ who.eop.gov); Dunn, Anita 8. 

who.eop.gov) 
Subject : Re: hoping to connect 

Thanks - Hi Anita and Rob - definitely agree and look forward to connecting. 

Sending a post that went live this afternoon with information that I know we've discussed in the past. We had a 
conversation with the Surgeon General's office yesterday to discuss the advisory In more detail and hope to 
continue to work to address concerns. 

Along with--( am really hoping to close the gap in terms of what's playing out publicly and what we 
might be able to accomplish working together. 

Rob-I'm around anytime for a conversation. 

>https://about. fb . com/news/2021/07 /support-for-covid-1 9-vaccines-is-high-on-fucebook-and-growi ng/< 

Get Outlook for iO S 

From: fb.com> 
Sent: Saturday, July 17, 2021 6:14 PM 

To: Flaherty, Rob R. EOP/WHO; Dunn, Anita B. EOP/WHO;­
Subject: RE: hoping to connect 

Thanks Anita, and t hanks Rob. I appreciate the wil li ngnesstodiscuss. We'd love to find a way to get things back to a 
productive conversation. Adding i n- o help us here-obviously Roband_,avea tight worki ng 

relationship al ready. 

From: Flaherty, Rob R. EOP/WHO 
Sent:Saturday,July17, 2021 3:06 PM 
To: Dunn, Anita B. EOP/WHO 
Cc: 
Subject: Re: hopi ng to connect 

Hi 1111 Happy to connect. 

Sent from my iPhone 

who.eop.gov> 

who.eop.gov> 

On Jul 17, 2021, at 5:56 PM, Dunn,Ani ta B. EOP/WHO 

Hi,- and thanks for reaching out. I'm addi ng Rob Flaherty, our Office of Digi tal Services Director, t o this chai n as 
well because he has been fol lowing your plat form (and others) closely when it comes to flow of informati on and 
misinformation. 
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Perhaps it makes sense to schedule a conversation? 
Anita 

From: fb.com> 
Sent: Saturday, July 17, 2021 5: PM 
To: Dunn, Anita B. EOP/WHO 
Subject: [ EXTERNAL] hopi ng to connect 

Hi Anita - hope you are we 11, 

Would love to connectwith you on the Preside nt's comments on Covid minsinfoand ourworkthere. Really could use 
your advice and counsel on how we get back to a good place here. 

While there's always been a disagreement on w here the l ines should beon minsinfogenerally, we have genuinely t ried 
to work with the administration ingoodfaith to address t he gaps and solve t he problems. As I hope you know, we've 
been doing a significant amount of work to both fight t he misinfo andfightthe pandemic th rough authoritative 
information. Obviously, yesterdaythi ngs were pretty heated, and I'd love to fi nd a way to get back to pushing together 
on this - we are 100% on t he same team here in fighti ng t his and I could really use your advice. 

Thanks, 

-
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From: 

Sent: 
To: 

CC: 
Subject : 

Rob, 

googl e.com] 

7/21/20211:03:37 AM 

CONFIDENTIAL 

Flaherty, Rob R. EOP/WHO who.eop.gov] 
google.com] 

Re: [EXTERNAL] YouTube Announcement 

To clarify, the content was not in violation of our policies and therefore not subject to removal. But for all 
content on YouTube, we apply our 4R framework we have previously described to raise authoritative voices 
while reducing visibility on borderline content. External evaluators use these guidelines which are then used to 
inform our machine learning systems that limits the spread of borderline content 

Best Regards, 

-On Tue, Jul 20, 2021 at 8:36 PM Flaherty, Rob R. EOP/WHO w ho.eo . ov> wrote: 
So this actually gets at a good question - the content - oints out isn't defined as "borderline" and 
therefore isn' t subject to recommendation limitations? 

Sent from my iPhone 

On Jul 20, 2021, at 8:27 PM, 

Rob-

oo 0 le.com> wrote: 

I'll check with our team and share any additional data points we have available. Per our CO VID-19 medical 
misinformation policy, we will remove any content that contradicts local health authorities' or the World 
Health Organization ' s (WHO) medical information about COVID-19. To date, approximately 89% of videos 
removed for violations of this policy were removed with 100 views or less. With regards to the specific videos 
you referenced, the content was not in violation of our community guidelines. 

Best Regards, 

-
On Tue, Jul 20, 2021 at 3:58 PM Flaherty, Rob R. EOP/WHO 

I see that's your goal - what is the actual number right now? 

I guess: does the content that eferences in his tweet count as violative content that has slipped 
through? Or is it that generally the stuff he's posting is in-bounds? 
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From: oo 0 le.com> 
Sent: Tues ay, J y 20, 2021 2:36 PM 
To: Flahe , Rob R EOP/WHO 
Cc: oo0 le.com> 
Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] YouTube Announcement 

Thanks Rob, 

We appreciate your interest in our announcement yesterday. With regards to your question on the Tweet, it is 
important to keep in mind that borderline content accounts for a fraction of 1 % of what is watched on 
YouTube in the United States. We use machine learning to reduce the recommendations of this type of 
content, including potentially harmful misinformation. In Januaty 2019, we announced changes to our 
recommendations systems to limit the spread of this type of content which resulted in a 70% drop in 
watchtime on non-subscnbed recommended content in the U.S. and our goal is to have views of non­
subscribed, recommended borderline content below 0.5%. I will keep you updated with any new policy or 
product improvements that we make as we continue our work to help people find authoritative health 
information on YouTube. 

Best Regards 

-
On Tue, Jul 20, 2021 at 10:57 AM Flaherty, Rob R. EOP/WHO 

- - Thanks for this. Interested to see it in action 

I'm curious: Saw this tweet. >>>https://twitter.com/ddale8 /status/1417130268859772929<<<;; 

I think we had a pretty extensive back and forth about the degree to which you all are recommending anti­
vaccination content. You were pretty emphatic that you are not. This seems to indicate that you are. What is 
going on here? 

Thanks! 

-Rob 

From: oo 0 le. com> 
Sent: Monday, July 19, 2021 I :27 PM 
To: Flahe , Rob R. EOP/WHO 
Q: ookw~ 
Subject: [EXTERNAL] YouTube Announcement 

Rob, 
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We wanted to share an announcement that we recently made regarding a few new ways in which 
we are making it easier for people to find authoritative information on health topics on You Tube. 

Starting this week, you'll see two new features next to some health-related searches and videos. 
These include a new health source information panel that will surface on videos to provide context 
about authoritative sources, and a new health content shelf that more effectively highlights videos 
from these sources when you search for specific health topics. These context cues are intended to 
help people more easily navigate and evaluate credible health information. 

To identify the sources that will be eligible to be included in these new features, we applied the 
principles recently developed and published by an expert panel convened by the National 
Academy of Medicine. 

You can find more information about our announcement here. We'd be happy to set up time to 
walk you through these new features or answer any questions you may have - please let me know 
what works best for you. 

Best Regards, 

-

Government Affairs & Public Policy Manager, 

Government Affairs & Public Policy Manager, 
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Government Affairs & Public Policy Manager, 

YouTube I oo le.com 11 -
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From: 

Sent: 
To: 
CC: 

Subject : 

Happy to. 

8/3/2021 12 :11 :33 AM 
Tom, Christian L EOP/WHO 
Fla her Rob R. EOP/WHO 

fb.com) 

who.eop.gov) 
[EXTERNAL) Re: Fol low up on WH questions 

who.eop.gov] 
. ov · O'Neill, Tegan E. EOP/WHO 

fb.com]; Qureshi, Hoor A. EOP/WHO 

Hoor, could you surface some times that work for your folks and we can go from there? 

-
On Aug 2, 2021, at 6:04 PM, Tom, Christian L. EOP/WHO who.eop.goV>wrote: 

Thank~ ortheinfo. Acal I might be helpful, ifwe candosomethingearly nextweek?AddingHoorhere but 
appreciate your email and makingtime total k further about it! 

From fb.com> 
Sent: Monday, August 2, 20211:14 PM 
To: Tom, Christian L. EOP /WHO w ho.eop.gov>; Flaherty, Rob R. EOP /WHO 

who.eop.gov>; O'Neill, Tegan E. EOP/WHO who.eop.gov>; 
fb.com> 

Subject: [EXTERNAL] FW: Follow up on WH questions 

Hi All, 

Per my and Christian's phone call lastTuesday, I gathered more details for you and you rte am; happy to setup a cal l to 
discuss further as well . 

As you know, we take aggressive steps to reduce the spread of vaccine hesitancy and vaccine misinformation on our 
platforms and we deploy technology to doso. As part of our efforts on lnstagram, we have measures to help ensure we 
don't recommend people fol low accounts that promote vaccine hesitancy at scale. For two weeks in Apri I (Apri 114-28) 
this measure was impacted by over-enforcement on a signal we used -- accounts that were posting far above normal 
vaccine-related content-· and removed these otherwise eligible accounts from being recommended as an account to 
follow. This did not impact reach or distribution of content in Feed or Stories orotherareas of account discovery on 
lnstagram, such as search or Explore . 

Peryour request for remediation, while we cannot boost your account in our recommendations, we are always here to 
help with content strategy, best practices, and further opportunities to collaborate. 

Again, happytodiscussfurtherona call. 
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From: fb.com> 

Date: Thursday, July 15, 2021 at 4:06 PM 

To: Flaherty, Rob R. EOP/WHO 

who.eop.gov>, 

Subject: Re: Follow up on WH questions 

O'Neill, Tega n E. EOP/WHO 

fb.com> 

Hi Rob - I totally understand how frustrating that is. This was due to a bug in our recommendation surface, and was 
resolved in late May. Accounts affected did not specifically lose any fol lowers as a result nor was the ir presence reduced 
in Search or Explore, however. If you want to hop on the phone to discuss it, I'm at anytime. 

From: "Flaherty, Rob R. EOP/WHO" 

Date: Thursday, July 15, 2021 at 3:2 

~ egan E. EOP/WHO" 
~ fb.com>, 

Subject: RE: Follow up on WH questions 

Are you guys fucking serious? I want an answer on what happened here and I want it today. 

From: O'Neil l, Tegan E. EOP/WHO 
Sent: Thursday, July 15, 2021 3:29 PM 

fb.com>· 
who.eop.gov> 

Subject: RE: Follow up on WH questions 

++ @Flaherty, Rob R. EOP/WHO 

From: 
Sent: Thursday, July 15, 2021 3: 
To: O'Nei ll, Tegan E. EOP/WHO who.eop.gov> 
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Re: Followupon WH questions 

fb.com>; Flaherty, Rob R. EOP/WHO 

fb.com> 

Hi Tegan-from what we understand it was an internal technical issue that we can't get into, but it's now resolved and 
should not happen again. 

From: "O'Neill, Tegan E. EOP/WHO" 

Date: Thursda , Jul 15, 2021 at 2:2 

To: f b.com>, 

Subject: RE: Follow up on WH questions 

Thankslll 

who.eop.gov> 

fb.com> 

Could you tell me more about t he technical issues affecting audience growth? Was this j ust us and do you have a sense 
of what the issue was? 

From: 
Sent: Thursday,July 15, 2021 2: 
To: O'Nei ll, Tegan E. EOP/WHO who.eop.gov>; fb.com> 
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Follow up on WH questions 
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Hi again Tegan! 

Coming back here on a few t hings: 
-First, the technical issues that had been affecting fol lower growth on@potus have been resolved . Though t here is still 
the issue of bot accounts being removed as normal, you should start to see yournumbers trend back upwards, all things 
being equal and notwithstanding the bigspikeyousawthisweekgiven the collaboration with Olivia Rodrigo. Thanks for 
your patience as we investigated this. 

-The answers to your aspect ratio, video quality and thumbnai I questions can al I be found in our Help Center here: 
»»https:ljwww.facebook.com/help/instagram/381435875695118<«<;;; and in t he Ii nks on that page. Regarding 1:1 
or4:5 for feed video, I don't have any specific recommendations on it. Obviously we know social managers are busy 
creating video for multiple platforms, so rest assured there is noalgorithmicdownside to using one crop over another. 

-Final ly, I can' t release any numbers related to the performance of difference video formats, or l ight mode vs. dark mode 
usage unfortunately. 

Let me know if you have any outstanding questions on these. -
From: "O'Neill, Tegan E. EOP/WHO" 

Date: Tuesday, July 13, 2021 at 11:4 

To: 
Subject: RE: IG optimization questions 

Appreciate it! 

From 
Sent: Tuesday, Ju ly 13, 2021 11: 

who.eop.gov> 

fb.com>, 

To: O'Nei ll, Tegan E. EOP/WHO who.eop.gov>; 
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Re : IG optimization questions 

fb.com> 

fb.com> 

Hi Teagan ! Let me round up some answers to these questions and come back to you shortly. Attached is the last edition 
of our IGTV video specsforyou to check out in the interim. 

From: "O'Neill, Tegan E. EOP/WHO" 

Date: Tuesday, July 13, 2021 at 10:15 AM 

To: fb.com>, 
Subject: IG optimization questions 

Hi 

who.eop.gov> 

fb.com> 

Hope you're both well ! I'm updating specs and guide lines forourvideo team and had a few quick questions. 

Do you have a guide/recommendation on codec/video qua! ity? We've seen some issues w ith video files that 
disp lay crisply on other platforms 
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Do you have an updated thumbnail guide for IGTVand reels? 
Do you see any difference in performance between black, white, and branded video mattes on square videos in 

vertical placements? 
Do more people use night mode than day mode? 
For in-feed video (not sure whatto cal I this but non-lGTV, non-reel video) do you recommend 1:1or 4:5 these 

days? 

Thank you! 
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From: 
To: 
Sent: 
Subject: 

Hi Rob -

CONFIDENTIAL 

twitter.com> 
Flaherty, Rob R. EOP/\1\/HO 
12/17/202110:44:52 PM 
Re: [EXTERNAL) Re: Doctored video on Twitter of the First Lady 

I'm around if you'd I ike to dial me. 

Best. -
On Fri, Dec 17, 202 1 at 5:33 PM Flaherty, Rob R EOP/WHO 

New to the thread here, but this all reads to me like you all are bending over backwards to say that this isn' t 

causing confusion on public issues. If the AP deems it confusing enough to write a fact check, and you deem it 
confusing enough to create an event for it, how on ea11h is it not confusing enough for it to at least have a label? 

Total Calvinball. 

From: Tom, Christian L. BOP/WHO 
Sent; Frida ,, December 17, 2021 5:24 PM 
To: 
Cc: , . 

mwho.eo . oov> 
Subject; RE: [EXTERNAL] Re: Doctored video on Twitter of the First Lady 

Thank~The policy at the top says: 

What is in violation of this policy 

In order for content with misleading media (including images, videos, audios, gifs, and 

URLs hosting relevant content) to be labeled or removed under this policy, it must: 

Include media that is significantly and deceptively altered, manipulated, or fabricated , 

or 
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Include media that is shared in a deceptive manner or with false context, and 

Include media likely to result in widespread confusion on public issues, impact public 

safety, or cause serious harm 

I've highlighted the above sections which say that the first condition can be met alone OR the second and third 
can be met. 

So that section that you've quoted makes sense, except this media is unto itself "significantly and deceptively 
altered, manipulated or fabricated." And thus it should meet the criteria as outlined in the first bullet point. 

I s that right? 

From: twitter.com> 
Sent: Friday, December 17, 2021 5:01 PM 
To: Tom, Christian L. EOP/WHO 
Cc: LaRosa, Michael l EOP,WHO c. who.ea .oov> 
Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Re: Doctored video on Twitter of the First Lady 

Hi Christian, 

I huddled with our enforcement teams on th is who confirmed that the media does not meet our 
threshold for either significant or moderate risk of harm. Due to the low risk associated, the team found 
it to not meet the requirements for a label. They've specifically pointed to this language in our Help 
Center article: 

Tweets that share misleading media are subject to removal under this policy if they are likely to 
cause serious harm. Some specific harms we consider include: 

Threats to physical safety of a person or group 
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Incitement of abusive behavior to a person or group 

Risk of mass violence or widespread civil unrest 

Risk of impeding or complicating provision of public services, protection efforts, or 
emergency response 

Threats to the privacy or to the ability of a person or group to freely express 
themselves or participate in civic events, such as: 

Unfortunately, there isn't anything further here I can do in regards to our enforcement teams. If 
anything changes, we'll be sure to let you know. Appreciate your continued partnership and please 
don't hesitate to let us know if you have additional Tweets for review, anytime. 

On Fri, Dec 17, 202 1 at 3:49 PM Tom, Christian L. EOP/WHO 

Wanted to follow-up before we hit EOW. Even if this particular moment is not as much in the public eye right 
now, it's really important to us that thi s is add ressed -- both on thi s particular one as well as a precedent for other 
moments when this might come up. 

So, we appreciate your response and update here when you can provide. 

Thanks, 

--- Chri stian 

From: c twitter.corn> 
Sent: Monday, December l3 , 2021 4:05 PM 
To: Tom, Christian L. EOP/WHO 
Cc: L aRosa, M ichael J. EOP1WHO c who.eo _c,ov> 
Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Re: Doctored video on Twitter of the First Lady 

Hello! Apologies as I have been out of the office. I am working with the internal teams for clarity around your 
specific questions, so I will let you know as soon as I hear. 

Appreciate your continued feedback here! 
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On Mon, D ec 13, 202 1 at 12: 16 PM Tom, Christian L EOPIWHO 

~ ope you had a good weekend. Wanted to make sure we addressed thi s' Please let us know if you have a 
few mins to chat or if you can help us to make sure the enforcement of the policy is consistent. 

From: Tom, Christian L. EOP/WHO 
Sent: Thursday, December 9, 2021 4:37 PM 
To: LaRosa, 11ichael J. EOP/WHO ,who.eo .0 ov>; twitter. com> 
Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] Re: Doctored video on Twitter of the First Lady 

Hi -

I wanted to follow-up here. Know this particular moment might have "passed" in terms of the scale/reach of it 
but in order to help us understand the Twitter processes best, wou ld appreciate clarification on thi s when you' re 

able. 

Thanks, 

-- Christian 

From: LaRosa, Michael J. EOP/WHO 
Sent: Wednesday, December 1, 202 1 5 13 PM 
To: 
Cc: Tom, Christian L. EOP/WHO c ,who.eo .gov> 
Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] Re: Doctored video on Twitter of the First Lady 

Thank you I 

MOLA_DEFSPROD _00016778 

Case 3:22-cv-01213-TAD-KDM   Document 174-1   Filed 01/11/23   Page 61 of 70 PageID #: 
9325



Michael LaRosa 

The White House 

Press Secretary I Office of the First Lady 

From: . twitter.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, December 1, 202 1 5 :09 PM 
To: LaRosa, Michael J. EOP/WHO 

CONFIDENTIAL 

Cc: Tom, Christian L EOP/WHO r. who.ea .oov> 
Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Re: Doctored video on Twitter of the First Lady 

Of course. Let me pass these additional questions along to the policy team directly for their insights and 
consideration. I'll let you know from there! 

On Wed, Dec 1, 2021 at 5:05 PM LaRosa, Michael l EOP/WHO 

Thanks, Christian. Hi - Let me know if we should hop on the phone to clarify. I am curious as to what 
would classify as " Ii kely" so it is indisputable that the video is " deceptively altered," "fabricated," and "shared in 
a deceptive manner." 

Mjchael LaRosa 

The White House 

Press Secretary I Office of the First Lady 
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From: Tom, Chri stian L. BOP/WHO 
Sent: Wednesday, December 1, 202 1 2: 19 PM 
To: twitter.com> 
Cc: LaRosa, Michael J. EOP1WHO who.ea .oov> 
Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] Re: Doctored video on Twitter of the First Lady 

OK thanks- think this one does not fall under the «likely to impact public safety or cause serious hann" 
but it does fall under the first two in the chart, which includes " significantly and deceptively altered or 
fabricated" and "shared in a deceptive manner?" 

And if the first two are met but the third is not, the chart says it is "likely to be removed." Can you share any 
other info about why this one is not getting what Twitter would otherwise say is the "likely" outcome? 

Also happy to chat on the phone this afternoon with Michael (who is the First Lady 's Press Secretary) if helpful 

From: twitter.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, December 1, 202 l 11: 11 AM 
To: Tom, Christian L . EOP/WHO 
Cc: LaRosa, Michael J. EOP/WHO who.ea .0 ov> 
Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Re: Doctored video on Twitter of the First Lady 

Appreciate you following up. After escalating this to our team, the Tweet and video referenced will not 
be labeled under our synthetic and manipulated media policy. Although it has been significantly 
altered, the team has not found it to cause harm or impact public safety. 

The team was able to create this Twitter Moment (here) and event page for more context and details: 
>>>>>https://twitter.com/i/events/1465769009073123330<<<;<<; 

Appreciate your feedback, as always. 

On Wed, Dec 1, 2021 at 9: l4 AM Tom, Christian L. EOP/WHO 

Just wanted to follow-up here. 

It looks like from the nibric that thi s fits the first two criteria, which means it is " likely" to be labeled: 
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>>>>>https://help .twitter.com/en/rnles-and-policies/manipulated-media<<<;<<; 

Thanks again -

-- Christian 

From: Tom, Christian L. EOP/WHO 
Sent: Tuesday, November 30, 2021 8:54 PM 
To: twitter.com>; LaRosa, Michael J. EOP/WHO 
Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] Re: Doctored video on Twitter of the First Lady 

Thanks - Will you apply the "Manipulated Media" disclaimer to the video asset itself? 

Both the linked tweet below and the original source of the video: 

>>>>>https://twitter.com/PapiTrumpo/status/ 1465439569965424643<<<;<<; 

Thanks-

-- Christian 

From: twitter.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, November 30, 2021 7:31 PM 

To: LaRosa, Michael J. EOP/WHO 
Cc: Tom, Christian L. EOP/WHO v,w ho.eo .oov> 
Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Re: Doctored video on Twitter of the First Lady 

Update for you - The team was able to create this event page for more context and 
details: >>>>>>https://twitter.com/i/events/ 1465769009073 123330<<;<<;<<; 
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On Tue, Nov 30, 202 l at 4:23 PM LaRosa, Michael J. EOP/WHO 

Thank you I 

Michael LaRosa 

The White House 

Press Secretary I Office of the F irst Lady 

From: twitter.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, November 30, 2021 4:04 PM 
To: Tom, Christian L. EOP/WHO 
Cc: LaRosa, Michael J. EOP1WHO Ci who.ea .0 ov> 
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Re: Doctored video on Twitter of the First Lady 

Hi Christian, 

Happy to escalate with the team for further review from here. 

Don't hesitate to let me know if you have any additional questions in the meantime. 

On Tue, Nov 30, 2021 at 3:58 PM Tom, Christian L. EOP/WHO Hi-
Would you mind looking at this video and helping us with next steps to put a label or remove it? 

>>>>>>>https://twitter.com/ ArtValley8 l 8 /status/ l 4654422668 l 0486787?s=20<<<<<<< 
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For reference, the timestamp is 32:47 for the undoctored video source here: 

>>>>>>>https :/ /www.c-span.org/vi deo/? 516345- l/lady-remarks-wh i te-house-hol i day-decoration­
vol unteers<<<<<<< 

Thanks, 

-- Christian 

Error! Filename not specified . 

... 
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From: 

Sent: 
To: 

CC: 
Subject : 

Flaherty, Rob R. EOP/WHO 

8/11/2022 5 :28:09 PM 

CONFIDENTIAL 

who.eop.gov) 

twitter.com) 

twitter.com); lee, Jesse C. EOP/WHO - who.eop.gov) 
Re: [EXTERNAL) Re: Joe Weisenthal on Twi tter: "Wow, this note that twitter added to Bi den's tweet is pure 

gibberish. Imagine addi ngthi s, and thi nki ngthis is helpful to the public's understanding in any way. (HT: 

@trynafa rm) https ://t.co/ECQAoczCA4" / ... 

Happy to talk through it but if yow- product is appending misinformation to our tweets that seems like a pretty 
fundamental issue 

On Aug 11, 2022, at 1 :23 PM, twitter.com> wrote: 

Hi Rob, 

Thanks for reaching out. I believe you're referring to our Birdwatch product feature. Here's the latest 
information about how it works. 

We'd be happy to arrange a meeting to walk you through how it works. We're also collecting feedback for our 
teams. 

Best, -
On Thu,~, 2022 at 12:31 PM Flaherty, Rob R EOP/WHO 
Adding - since - seems to be out 

> On Aug 11, 2022, at 12:21 PM, Flaherty, Rob R EOP/WHO 
> 
> Happy to connect you with some economists who can explain the basics to you guys 
> 
> https//mobile.twiner.com/gasbuddyguy/status/15 55541573835886592/photo/l 

0 The 
link 
ed 

Head of U.S. Public Policy 
Followme -

I 1x1 The linked imaae cannot be disolav ... 
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From: twitter.com> 
To: Lee, Jesse C. EOP/WHO 
CC: Flaherty, Rob R. EOP/WH0;-
Sent: 8/11/2022 8:23:50 PM 
Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Re: Joe Weisenthal on Twitter: "Wow, this note that twitter added to Biden's 

tweet is pure gibberish. Imagine adding this, and thinking this is helpful to the public's 
understanding in any way. (HT: @trynafarm) https://t.co/ECQAoczCA4" / ... 

Hi Jesse- I just tried you on your cell. I'm at 

Best, -
On Thu, Aug 11 , 2022 at 1 :28 PM Lee, Jesse C. EOP/WHO c who.eo .0 ov> wrote: 
Thanks- I like the feature! But this note is factually inaccurate. T us is a very technical question but you 
don't have it right, and you are in effect calling the President a liar when his tweet is actually accurate. I'm happy 
to discuss this with whoever is the right person. 

Cell : 

Sent from my iPhone 

On Aug 11 , 2022, at 1 :23 PM, 

Hi Rob, 

Thanks for reaching out. I believe you're referring to our Birdwatch product feature . Here's the latest information 
about how it works . 

We'd be happy to arrange a meeting to walk you through how it works. We're also collecting feedback for our 
teams. 

Best, -
On Thu, Aug 11 , 2022 at 12 :31 PM Flaherty, Rob R . EOP/WHO 
Adding- since-eems to be out 

> On Aug 11 , 2022, at 12 :21 PM, Flaherty, Rob R. EOP/WHO 
> 
> Happy to connect you with some economists who can explain the basics to you guys 
> 
> https ://mobile.twitter.com/gasbuddyguy/status/ 155 5 5415 73 835886592/photo/l 
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LJ 
"JI WHAT'S HAPPENING 

□ "JI WHAT'S HAPPENING 
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